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Forward-Looking Statements

Our disclosure and analysis in this report concerning our operations, cash flows and financial position, including, in particular, the likelihood of our success in developing and
expanding our business and the realization of sales from our backlog, include forward-looking statements. Statements that are predictive in nature, that depend upon or refer
to future events or conditions, or that include words such as “expects, G

<

anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates” and similar expressions are forward-looking
statements. Although these statements are based upon reasonable assumptions, they are subject to risks and uncertainties that are described more fully herein and in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, in Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and in Part I under the heading "Cautionary Notice Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements", as well as in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These risks include our ability to successfully realize the expected
benefits of the business combination; our ability to operate in existing markets or expand into new jurisdictions; our ability to manage our growth effectively; litigation or
investigations involving us, our agents or other contractual counterparties, or related to our operations and/or strategic transactions; our ability to continue to operate in states
where we have obtained the requisite licenses to the extent that the laws and regulations of such states clearly indicate that a license is required or where state regulators have
advised us that we need a license to operate; our ability to manage regulatory uncertainty in the cryptocurrency industry and maintain positive relationships with federal and
state regulators; increasing legislation and regulation by state governments related to the operation of Bitcoin ATMs; our products and services may be negatively
characterized by consumer advocacy groups, the media or certain federal, state and local government officials; our dependence on key business relationships with certain key
suppliers of Bitcoin; our dependence on, and ability to maintain, key business relationships with store locations for our kiosks and franchise locations, and related supplies,
programs, and technologies for our business on acceptable terms; the negative impact on our future results of operations of the unknown potential growth rate and demand for
Bitcoin kiosks and by the slow adoption of cryptocurrency; our heavy dependency on our ability to win, maintain and renew contracts with store location partners;
unfavorable macroeconomic conditions or decreased discretionary spending due to other factors such as increased interest rates, increased inflation, high fuel rates, recessions,
epidemics or other public health issues, terrorist activity or threat thereof, civil unrest or other economic or political uncertainties, that could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial conditions; and our ability to obtain debt financing or refinance existing indebtedness on satisfactory terms, liquidity and trading
of our public securities. Accordingly, we can give no assurance that we will achieve the results anticipated or implied by our forward-looking statements. We undertake no
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise, except as required by law.
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Part I - Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements.

BITCOIN DEPOT INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(UNAUDITED)

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Three Months Ended September 30,

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue $ 162,482 $ 135,271 498,816 $ 436,376
Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) 132,357 112,853 402,830 370,848
Operating expenses:
Selling, general, and administrative 16,443 14,694 44,992 44,062
Depreciation and amortization 1,900 2,245 5,666 8,184
Total operating expenses 18,343 16,939 50,658 52,246
Income from operations 11,782 5,479 45,328 13,782
Other (expense) income:
Interest (expense), net 4,133) (2,907) (11,927) (10,731)
Other income 905 103 2,145 143
Gain (loss) on foreign currency transactions (25) 29) 95 (294)
Income before provision for income taxes and non-controlling interest 8,529 2,646 35.641 2,900
Income tax expense (3,042) (347) (5,656) 479)
Net income $ 5487  § 2,299 29985 § 2,421
Net (loss) income attributable to non-controlling interest 57) 3,238 14,178 7,459
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ 5,544 % (939) 15807 $ (5,038
Net income (loss) per share of common stock - basic and diluted $ 008 $ (0.05) 037 $ 0.39)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic and diluted 67,822,957 20,701,447 42,165,276 18,908,391

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BITCOIN DEPOT INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(UNAUDITED)

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Three Months Ended September 30,

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total comprehensive income
Less: Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to non-controlling interest
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2025 2025 2024
5487 $ 2299 $ 29985 $ 2,421
19 (19) (36) 1)
5,506 2,280 29,949 2,420
(57) 3,225 14,178 7,459
5563 $ (945) $ 15771 $ (5,039

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BITCOIN DEPOT INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

September 30, 2025

(unaudited) December 31, 2024
Assets
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 59,266 $ 29,472
Cryptocurrencies 13,634 1,510
Accounts receivable
1,511 275
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,775 3,076
Total current assets 79,186 34,333
Property and equipment:
Furniture and fixtures 635 635
Leasehold improvements 172 172
Kiosk machines - owned 42,374 36,831
Kiosk machines - leased 8,977 10,367
Total property and equipment 52,158 48,005
Less: accumulated depreciation (24,934) (21,158)
Total property and equipment, net 27,224 26,847
Intangible assets, net 1,186 2,320
Goodwill 8,717 8,717
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 2,105 2,595
Deposits 1,110 734
Deferred tax assets 5,750 4,558
Total assets $ 125,278 $ 80,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BITCOIN DEPOT INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

September 30, 2025

(unaudited) December 31, 2024
Liabilities and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity
Current:
Accounts payable $ 9,902 § 11,557
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 19,382 14,260
Notes payable, current portion 7,461 6,022
Income taxes payable 1,830 2,207
Deferred revenue 390 20
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 796 858
Current installments of obligations under finance leases 2,375 3,446
Other non-income tax payable — 2,259
Total current liabilities 42,136 40,629
Long-term liabilities
Notes payable, non-current 59,717 49,457
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 1,313 1,774
Obligations under finance leases, non-current 492 1,950
Deferred income tax, net 604 604
Tax receivable agreement liability due to related party, non-current — 2,176
Total Liabilities 104,262 96,590

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 19)

Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity
Series A Preferred Stock, $0.0001 par value; 50,000,000 authorized, 0 and 1,733,884 shares issued and outstanding, at
September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively — —
Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value; 800,000,000 authorized, 27,938,182 and 19,263,164 shares issued, and
27,747,562 and 19,072,544 shares outstanding at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively 3 1
Class E common stock, $0.0001 par value; 2,250,000 authorized, 0 and 1,075,761 shares issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively — —
Class M common stock, $0.0001 par value; 300,000,000 authorized, 40,779,094 and 0 shares issued and outstanding at

September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively 4 —
Class V common stock, $0.0001 par value; 300,000,000 authorized, 0 and 41,193,024 shares issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively — 4
Treasury stock 437) 437)
Additional paid-in capital 46,878 21,491
Accumulated deficit (27,659) (44,349)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (255) (342)
Total Stockholders’ (Deficit) Attributable to Bitcoin Depot Inc. 18,534 (23,632)
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 2,482 7,146
Total Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity 21,016 (16,486)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity $ 125278  § 80,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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January 1, 2025

Cumulative-effect adjustment due
to the adoption of Accounting
Standards Update 2023-08, net of
tax

Distributions

Foreign currency translation
Conversion to Class A common
stock

Shares issued for vested RSU
awards

Issuance of Class A common
stock, net of issuance costs
Share-based compensation
expense

Net income attributable to Bitcoin
Depot Inc.

March 31, 2025

Distributions

Foreign currency translation
Exchange of Class V common
stock for Class M common stock
pursuant to the Up-C
Restructuring

Cumulative impact of Up-C
Restructuring, net of transaction
expenses

Shares issued for vested RSU
awards

Issuance of Class A common
stock, net of issuance costs
Share-based compensation
expense

Net income attributable to Bitcoin
Depot Inc.

June 30, 2025

Distributions

Foreign currency translation
Conversion of Class M common
stock for Class A common stock
Up-C Restructuring transaction
expenses

Shares issued for vested RSU
awards

Issuance of Class A common
stock, net of issuance costs
Share-based compensation
expense

Net income attributable to Bitcoin
Depot Inc.

September 30, 2025

BITCOIN DEPOT INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025
(UNAUDITED)

Series A
Preferred Stock

Shares Amount

1,733,884 §  —

(1,733,884) —

Class A
‘Common Stock

Shares
19,263,16
4 8

2,809,645
74,593

598,928

22,746,33
0 s

373,043

2,321,402

25,440,77
5

413,930

286,844

1,796,633

27,938,18
2 8

Amount

1

1

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Class E
‘Common Stock

Shares Amount
1075761 § —
(1,075,761) —
$
— oy —
$

Class M
‘Common Stock

Shares Amount
— s
$
41,193,024 4
41,193,024 § 4
(413,930)

40,779,094

Class V
Common Stock

Shares Amount
41,193,024 $ 4
41,193,024 § 4
(41,193,02
4) )
— s —
$

5.

Treasury Stock

Addition
al Paid-

Shares Amount
(190,62

0) $ (437) §

(190,62
0) § (437) 8

(190,62
0) § (437) 8

In
Capital

214
91

978

360

22,8
29

36,0

(238)

Total
Stockholders’
Accumulate Deficit Non- Total
Accumula d Other Attributable to  Controll Stockholders’
ted Comprehens  Bitcoin Depot ing (Deficit)
Deficit ive (Loss) Inc. Interest Equity
(4434 7,14
s 9) S (342) §  (23632) S 6 §  (16486)
852 852 852
247
— — — 7 (2477)
86 86 (89) (3)
— — 1 — 1
— — 978 — 978
360 8 368
7,98
4,193 — 4,193 2 12,175
(39,30 12,5
s 4) S (256) $  (17,162) S 70§ (4,592)
(7.64
— — — 0) (7,640)
7 7 (59) (52)
(8,59
1,545 5) (7,050)
10,999 10,999
— — 697 8 705
625
6,070 6,070 3 12,323
(3323 253
s 48 (249) $ 2156 S 7§ 4,693
31 (6) 25 (6) 19
— — (238) — (238)
— — 8,870 — 8,870
2,177 8 2,185
5,544 — 5,544 (57) 5,487
(27,65 248
$ 9,8 (255, 8 18534 § 2 $ 21016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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January 1,2024

Distributions

Foreign currency translation
Conversion of Series A preferred
stock to class A common stock
Share-based compensation
expense

Purchase of treasury shares
Shares issued for vested RSU
awards

Net income (loss) attributable to
Bitcoin Depot Inc.

April 1,2024

Distributions

Foreign currency translation
Shares issued for vested RSU
awards

Stock based compensation
Redemption of non-controlling
interest

Change in tax basis in BT
HoldCo due to redemption
Net Income (loss) attributable to
Bitcoin Depot Inc.

July 1, 2024

Distributions

Foreign currency translation
Shares issued for vested RSU
awards

Stock compensation

Net (loss) income attributable to
Bitcoin Depot Inc.

September 30, 2024

Series A

Preferred Stock

Shares
3,125,000

(50,000)

3,075,000

3,075,000

3,075,000

BITCOIN DEPOT INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY

Class A

Common Stock

Amount Shares
13,602,691

$ o 1602,
50,000
— 69,000
13,721,691

$ o 2721,
717,188
2,906,976
$ = 17,345,855
498,319
$ = 17,844,174

Amount

$

THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

(UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ClassE Class V
Common Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock
Accumulated
Other
Amoun  Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares t (Loss)
44,100,00 (120,64 (27
L075761 ¢ - b G A Hs 98 (203)
— — — — — — 4
(69,976) (IS)
8
44,100,00 (190,62 (43
L075761 ¢ - b G 4 g ns 28 (199)
— — — — — — 1
(2,906,976)
1,075,761 $ = AHER 4 g (9062 ¢ (43 ¢ (198)
4 0 7
— — — — — — (6)
1,075,761 $ = 41'193'0i $ 4 s “90'6(2)) $ (43) $ (204)

Additiona
1Paid-In
Capital

17,32
$ 6
889
18,21
$ 5
1,720
585
211

2
$ 0,73
1
404
21,13
3 5

Accumulated

$

$

$

$

Deficit
(32,663)

(1,538)

(34,201)

(2,561)

(36,762)

(939)

(37,701)

Total Stockholders’
(Deficit) Attributable
to Bitcoin Depot Inc.

$ (15,814)

889

(158)

(1,538)

$ (16,617)

1

1,720
585

211
(2.561)

$ (16,661)

()

404
(939)

$ (17,202)

Non-
Controllin
g Interest
$ 25,187

(916)
9

(2,690)

$ 21,598
(6,832)
4

(585)

6,911

$ 21,104

(15,00
0)

(13)

8
3,238

$ 9,337

Total
Stockholders’

(Deficit) Equity

$

$

$

$

9,373
(916)
13

897

(158)

(4,228)

4,981
(6,832)
5

1,728

211
4350
4,443

(15,000)
(19)

412
2,299

(7.865)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BITCOIN DEPOT INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
Nine Months Ended September 30,

2025 2024
Cash flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 29,985 $ 2,421
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of deferred financing costs 555 1,047
Depreciation and amortization 5,666 8,184
Non-cash share-based compensation 3,257 3,037
Purchase of services in cryptocurrencies 689 1,014
Unrealized (gain) loss on cryptocurrencies 941) —
Deferred taxes (1,192) (1,752)
Write-off of deferred financing costs — 3,136
Cryptocurrency received as payment (804) (1,068)
Other 268 534
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Deposits (375) (324)
Accounts receivable (1,236) (136)
Cryptocurrencies (1,744) 75
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,700) (1,260)
Accounts payable (1,655) 3,630
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 5,119 (988)
Income taxes payable 377) (1,128)
Other non-income tax payable (2,259) (62)
Tax receivable agreement liability (331) 1,471
Deferred revenue 370 96)
Operating leases, net (262) (482)
Net Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities 33,033 17,253
Cash flows from Investing Activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (4,855) (9,886)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 88 —
Acquisition of BTC for investment (8,473 ) (620)
Net Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities (13,240) (10,506)
Cash flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 24,018 24,352
Principal payments on notes payable (12,711) (2,878)
Principal payments on finance lease (2,529) (6,243)
Borrowing on finance leases — 3,382
Payment of deferred financing costs (163) 19)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 20,847 —
Cash paid in connection with Up-C restructuring (9,133) —
Purchase of treasury stock — (158)
Distributions (10,117) (22,748)
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used In) Financing Activities 10,212 4,312)
Effect of exchange rate changed on cash and cash equivalents (211) 35
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 29,794 2,470
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period 29,472 29,759
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $ 59,266 § 32,229

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BITCOIN DEPOT INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2025 2024
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the nine months ended September 30 for:
Interest $ 8,955 $ 6,921
Income taxes $ 9,295 $ 3,652

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:

See Note 2 for information on non-cash exchange of Class V for Class M shares and write-off of the tax receivable agreement related to the Up-C Restructuring.

See Note 5 for information on non-cash distribution to the Member.

See Note 13 for information on non-cash financing activity related to term loan agreements.

On March 26, 2024, the Company amended its term loan agreement with its lender. The total principal on the old term loan of $19.9 million was extinguished and the new
term loan's principal balance with the same lender is $35.6 million. The net proceeds from the issuance is recorded as an inflow from financing activities of $15.2 million, net
of fees paid of $0.5 million.

See Note 18 for information on non-cash activity related to a lease termination and new lease arrangements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BITCOIN DEPOT INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

(1) Organization and Background

(a) Organization

Lux Vending, LLC (dba Bitcoin Depot) (“Legacy Bitcoin Depot”) was formed on June 7, 2016. Pursuant to a transaction with GSR II Meteora Acquisition Corp.
(“GSRM?”), a Delaware corporation formed on October 14, 2021, Legacy Bitcoin Depot merged with and into GSRM and GSRM was renamed Bitcoin Depot Inc. (“Bitcoin
Depot”, or the “Company”) (see Note 2(a)). Bitcoin Depot owns and operates the largest network of Bitcoin ATMs (“BTMs” or “BTM kiosks”) in North America where
customers can buy and sell cryptocurrencies. The Company also maintains a leading position in the BTM market in Canada and Australia. In addition to its BTM network,
Bitcoin Depot also sells cryptocurrency to consumers at a network of retail locations through its BDCheckout product offering and through its website. The BDCheckout
offering allows users similar functionality to the BTM kiosks, enabling users to load cash into their accounts at the checkout counter at retail locations, and use those funds
to purchase cryptocurrency. The Company’s website allows users to purchase cryptocurrency online for which the Company earns a commission. Bitcoin Depot also offers a
software solution to other BTM operators through its controlled subsidiary, BitAccess Inc. ("BitAccess").

(b) Background

Several factors affect the price of cryptocurrencies, including but not limited to: (a) global supply and demand; (b) investors’ expectations with respect to the rate of
inflation; (c) interest rates; (d) currency exchange rates, including the rates at which cryptocurrencies may be exchanged for fiat currencies; (e) fiat currency withdrawal and
deposit policies of electronic market places where traders may buy and sell cryptocurrencies based on bid-ask trading activity with the various exchanges and the liquidity of
those exchanges; (f) interruptions in service from or failures of major cryptocurrency exchanges; (g) investment and trading activities of large investors, including private
and registered funds, that may directly or indirectly invest in cryptocurrencies; (h) monetary policies of governments, trade restrictions, currency devaluations and
revaluations; (i) regulatory measures, if any, that restrict the use of cryptocurrencies as a form of payment; (j) the maintenance and development of the open-source protocol
governing the cryptocurrency’s network; (k) global or regional political, economic or financial events and situations; (1) expectations among market participants that the
value of a cryptocurrency will soon change; and (m) the reduction in mining rewards of Bitcoin, including block reward halving events, which are events that occur after a
specific period of time and reduce the block reward earned by miners.

Global supply for a particular cryptocurrency is determined by the asset’s network source code, which sets the rate at which assets may be awarded to network participants.
Global demand for cryptocurrencies is influenced by such factors as the increase in acceptance by retail merchants and commercial businesses of cryptocurrency as a
payment alternative, the security of online exchanges and digital wallets, the perception that the use of cryptocurrencies is safe and secure, and the lack of regulatory
restrictions on their use. Additionally, there is no assurance that any cryptocurrency will maintain its long-term value in terms of purchasing power. Any of these events
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and the results of its operations.

(¢) Liquidity

As of September 30, 2025, the Company had current assets of $79.2 million, including cash and cash equivalents of $59.3 million, current liabilities of $42.1 million, total
stockholders’ equity of $21.0 million and an accumulated deficit of $(27.7) million. For the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company recognized net income of
$30.0 million, generated positive cash flows from operations of $33.0 million and had cash flows provided by financing activities of $10.2 million, primarily due to
proceeds from the issuance of notes payable and proceeds from issuance of common stock. For the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company recognized
interest expense of $12.0 million and interest income of $0.1 million. The Company expects its existing cash and cash equivalents, together with cash provided by
operations, to be sufficient to fund its operations for a period of 12 months from the date that these consolidated financial statements are issued.

(d) Risks and Uncertainties

The operations of Bitcoin Depot are subject to various regulatory challenges and uncertainties. The Company's ability to operate and expand its cryptocurrency kiosk
services in compliance with applicable laws and regulations is a significant risk that may impact its financial performance and overall business prospects. The regulatory
landscape surrounding cryptocurrencies, including the operation of crypto kiosks, is rapidly evolving and can vary significantly from one jurisdiction to another. The impact
of heightened regulatory oversight is not yet known. State agencies may propose and adopt new regulations (or interpret existing regulations) in ways that
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BITCOIN DEPOT INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

could result in significant adverse changes in the regulatory landscape for cryptocurrencies, regardless of whether these or other new laws are adopted.

The Company's financial performance and ability to achieve its business objectives may be significantly impacted by the outcome of ongoing regulatory discussions and
potential changes in the regulatory framework governing cryptocurrencies. These uncertainties may result in lower revenue and margin, increased compliance costs,
operational restrictions, or limitations on the Company's ability to expand its services or enter new markets. Compliance with current and proposed legislation that has not
yet been published may be more challenging and costly than anticipated.

In addition, the Company's ability to obtain and maintain the necessary licenses, permits, and approvals from state regulatory authorities is subject to various factors beyond
its control, including changes in laws, regulations, or interpretations thereof. Failure to comply with these requirements may result in penalties, fines, or even the suspension
or termination of the Company's operations in the state.

(2) Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

Unaudited Interim Financial Statements

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) with respect to interim reporting. The unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2024 on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on March 24, 2025. The Company has included all normal
recurring items and adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results of the interim period. The Company’s interim unaudited consolidated financial statements
are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any other interim period or for the full year.

The Company consolidates business enterprises that it controls by ownership of a majority voting interest. However, there are situations in which consolidation is required
even though the usual condition of consolidation (ownership of a majority voting interest) does not apply. An enterprise must consolidate a Variable Interest Entity
(“VIE”) if it is determined to be the primary beneficiary of the VIE. The primary beneficiary has both (a) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most
significantly impact the entity’s economic performance, and (b) the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be
significant to the VIE. The Company consolidates all entities that it controls by ownership of a majority voting interest as well as VIEs for which the Company is the
primary beneficiary.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of Bitcoin Depot Inc. and its controlled subsidiaries: BCD Merger Sub LLC, BT HoldCo LLC
("BT HoldCo"), Kiosk HoldCo LLC, Bitcoin Depot Operating, LLC, Lux Vending Kiosk, LLC, Mintz Assets, Inc., BTM Solutions India Private Limited, Express
Vending, Inc., Kiosk Technicians LLC, NZ BTM Ltd., AUS BTM Pty Ltd., UK BTM LTD, HK BTM Limited, BTM International Holdings I LLC, BTM International
Holdings I LLC, Bitcoin Depot, S. de R.L. de C.V., Intuitive Software, LLC, Digital Gold Ventures, Inc. (“Digital Gold”), and BitAccess Inc. BCD Merger Sub LLC is a
holding company with ownership of BT Holdco. BT HoldCo is a holding company with ownership of Kiosk HoldCo LLC. Kiosk HoldCo LLC is a holding company with
ownership of Bitcoin Depot Operating, LLC. Bitcoin Depot Operating, LLC is a holding company with ownership of Lux Vending Kiosk LLC, Mintz Assets, Inc. and
Intuitive Software, LLC. Mintz Assets, Inc. is a holding company that holds the ownership of BTM Solutions India Private Limited, Express Vending, Inc., Kiosk
Technicians LLC, NZ BTM Ltd., AUS BTM Pty Ltd., UK BTM LTD, HK BTM Limited, BTM International Holdings I LLC, and BTM International Holdings II LLC.
BTM International Holdings I LLC and BTM International Holdings II LLC are holding companies that hold joint ownership of Bitcoin Depot, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Express Vending, Inc. is a Canadian corporation whose business activities include owning and operating a network of BTM kiosks in Canada. Intuitive Software, LLC is a
holding company that holds an 82.14% equity interest (through its ownership of Digital Gold) in BitAccess Inc., a Canadian corporation. The non-controlling interests
held by investors directly in BT HoldCo and BitAccess are presented separately as further discussed in Note 11. Intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Reverse Recapitalization

GSR II Meteora Acquisition Corp. (“GSRM”) was a blank check company incorporated as a Delaware corporation on October 14, 2021, for the purpose of effecting a
merger or similar business combination with one or more businesses. On March 1, 2022, GSRM consummated its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”). On August 24, 2022,
GSRM entered into a Transaction Agreement, as subsequently
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amended (the “Transaction Agreement”), by and among GSRM, GSR II Meteora Sponsor LLC (the “Sponsor”), Lux Vending, LLC (dba Bitcoin Depot) (“Legacy Bitcoin
Depot”) and BT Assets, Inc. (“BT Assets”) (the “Transaction Agreement”). Prior to the events contemplated in the Transaction Agreement (collectively, the "Merger"), BT
Assets was the sole owner and member in Legacy Bitcoin Depot (the "Member").

On June 30, 2023 (the “Closing Date”), Legacy Bitcoin Depot merged with and into Bitcoin Depot Operating LLC (“BT OpCo”), with BT OpCo surviving the Merger as
the post-transaction operating company owned solely by a newly formed entity, BT HoldCo with common units (the “BT HoldCo Common Units”), preferred units (the
“BT HoldCo Preferred Units”) and earnout units (the “BT HoldCo Earnout Units”) outstanding and issued to BT Assets. In connection with the Merger, GSRM changed
its name to Bitcoin Depot Inc., purchased BT HoldCo Common Units owned by BT Assets and was issued BT HoldCo Earnout Units and warrants to purchase a number
of BT HoldCo Common Units equal to the number of shares of Class A common stock that may be purchased upon the exercise in full of all Warrants outstanding
immediately after Closing (“BT HoldCo Matching Warrants”). The former owners of Legacy Bitcoin Depot (i.e., BT Assets and the owners thereof) were issued
44,100,000 non-economic, super voting shares of Class V common stock in Bitcoin Depot. The Class V common stock held by BT Assets corresponds to units held by BT
Assets in BT HoldCo and represented non-controlling interests in the Company, as described in Note 11. Following the closing of the Merger, the Company was organized
under an “Up-C” structure in which the business of the Company was operated by BT HoldCo and its subsidiaries, and Bitcoin Depot’s only material direct asset consists
of equity interests in BT HoldCo. At June 30, 2023, the Company had issued and outstanding 12,358,691 common units, 4,300,000 Series A Preferred Units and
43,848,750 warrants in BT HoldCo. Also at June 30, 2023, BT Assets owned 41,200,000 common units, 2,900,000 Founder Preferred Units, 5,000,000 Class 1 Earnout
Units, 5,000,000 Class 2 Earnout Units and 5,000,000 Class 3 Earnout Units in BT HoldCo.

Notwithstanding the legal form of the Merger pursuant to the Transaction Agreement, the Merger was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization. The Merger was
accounted for as a common control transaction and reverse recapitalization in accordance with U.S. GAAP, as BT Assets controlled BT OpCo both before and after the
transactions. Legacy Bitcoin Depot was determined to be the predecessor and represented a continuation of BT OpCo’s balance sheet and consolidated statement of
income, reflective of the recapitalization of the Merger.

As a result of the reverse capitalization accounting, the assets and liabilities of Legacy Bitcoin Depot were reflected by the Company at their historical cost with no
additional goodwill or intangible assets recorded, accompanied by a recapitalization of the equity structure.

In connection with the Merger, the Company’s Class A common stock is now listed on the National Association of Securities of Dealers Automated Quotations
(“Nasdaq”) under the symbol BTM and the Warrants to purchase the Class A common stock are listed on the Nasdaq under the symbol BTMWW in lieu of the GSRM
Ordinary Shares and GSRM’s warrants, respectively. GSRM’s units automatically separated into the GSRM’s Ordinary Shares and GSRM’s warrants and ceased trading
separately on the Nasdaq following the Closing Date. Prior to the Merger, GSRM neither engaged in any operations nor generated any revenue. Until the Merger, based on
GSRM’s business activities, it was a shell company as defined under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).

Up-C Restructuring

On May 30, 2025, the Company entered into and consummated the transactions contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with BT
Assets, Mr. Brandon Mintz, the Company’s Founder and Chief Executive Officer, BD Investment Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, BD Investment
Holdings II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, BT HoldCo, BCD Merger Sub LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a direct wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Merger Sub LLC”), and BCD Merger Sub Inc., a Delaware corporation and a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub Inc.”),
resulting in, among other things, BT HoldCo becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. In addition, the Company and BT Assets agreed to terminate the Tax
Receivable Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2023 (the “Tax Receivable Agreement”), by and among the Company, BT HoldCo and BT Assets (the transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the “Up-C Restructuring”).

Under the Company’s organizational structure immediately prior to the consummation of the Up-C Restructuring, the Company was a holding company and its principal
asset was its ownership of BT HoldCo Common Units and warrants to purchase BT HoldCo Common Units (“BT HoldCo Warrants”). The Company, BT Assets, which
prior to the merger was an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Mintz, and certain entities affiliated with Mr. Mintz, were the only members of BT HoldCo. The
Company’s public stockholders held shares of Class A Common Stock, which are entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders of
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the Company and have economic rights (including rights to dividends and distributions upon liquidation by the Company), and/or Company Warrants, which are
exercisable for shares of Class A Common Stock at a price of $11.50 per share. Mintz, through his ownership of BT Assets, held (i) 41,193,024 shares of the Company’s
Class V common stock constituting all of the issued and outstanding shares of Class V Common Stock immediately prior to the consummation of the Up-C Restructuring,
which were entitled to ten votes per share on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders of the Company, but had no economic rights, and (ii) 41,193,024 BT HoldCo
Common Units, constituting approximately 63.48% of the issued and outstanding BT HoldCo Common Units immediately prior to the consummation of the Up-C
Restructuring, which have economic rights equivalent to the Class A common stock (including rights to distributions from BT HoldCo, including upon liquidation), but
have no voting rights.

Following the consummation of the Up-C Restructuring, the public stockholders continue to hold their issued and outstanding Class A Common Stock and Company
Warrants, and their respective voting and economic rights with respect to the Company did not change as a result of the Up-C Restructuring. In connection with the Up-C
Restructuring, (a) the stockholders of BT Assets (which included Mr. Mintz and his affiliated entities), in consideration for 100% of the shares of capital stock of BT
Assets, received a number of newly issued shares of the Company’s Class M common stock equivalent to one share of Class M common stock for each share of Class V
common stock held by BT Assets immediately prior to the consummation of the Up-C Restructuring. The shares of Class M common stock are entitled to ten votes per
share on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders and have economic rights (including rights to dividends and distributions upon liquidation by the Company) that
are the same as the Class A Common Stock. As a result, Mr. Mintz no longer has economic rights through BT HoldCo Common Units and instead participates, together
with the public stockholders of the Company, directly in the economics of the Company through their ownership of Class M Common Stock and Class A common stock,
respectively. Under the Company’s second amended and restated certificate of incorporation, shares of Class M common stock automatically convert on a one-for-one
basis into fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A common stock upon (a) the transfer of Class M common stock to any person other than Mr. Mintz or his
affiliates and (b) Mr. Mintz and his affiliates ceasing to own shares of Class M common stock that represent at least 20% of the voting power represented by the shares of
Class V common stock held by Mr. Mintz and his affiliates as of immediately after the closing of the Company’s de-SPAC transaction on June 30, 2023. In connection
with the Up-C Restructuring, the Company and Mr. Mintz agreed to terminate the Tax Receivable Agreement.

As consideration under the Merger Agreement, the Company (i) issued to former stockholders of BT Assets 41,193,024 shares of Class M common stock in exchange for
the shares of Class V common stock and BT HoldCo Common Units held by BT Assets immediately prior to the Up-C Restructuring, and (ii) entered into a contingent
equity rights agreement with the former stockholders of BT Assets which provides potential economic benefits equivalent to those provided to BT Assets by the earnout
units in BT HoldCo held by BT Assets immediately prior to the Up-C Restructuring. As consideration for the termination of the Tax Receivable Agreement, as of
September 30, 2025 the Company has made cash payments to the former stockholders of BT Assets (including Mr. Mintz and his affiliated entities) in the amount of $9.1
million. As the transaction involved an exchange of equity interests, with no change in control over net assets, it was accounted for as a common control transaction.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, valuation of current and deferred income taxes, the determination of the useful
lives of property and equipment, recoverability of intangible assets and goodwill, fair value of long-term debt, present value of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets,
assumptions and inputs for fair value measurements used in business combinations, valuation of cryptocurrencies, share-based compensation and contingencies, including
liabilities that the Company deems are not probable of assertion. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

(c) Concentration of Credit Risk Arising from Cash Deposits in Excess of Insured Limits
The Company maintains cash in established U.S., Canadian and Australian financial institutions that often will exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not

experienced any losses in such accounts that are maintained at the financial institutions.

The Company maintains cash balances in its BTMs and in fiat wallets with cryptocurrency exchanges to facilitate the purchase and sale of cryptocurrencies. The cash
balances in the BTMs are not insured. The Company had cash balances of $14.9 million and $10.7 million in BTMs as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024,
respectively. Cash maintained in fiat wallets with cryptocurrency
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exchanges is not insured. The Company had immaterial balances in cash with cryptocurrency exchanges as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash maintained at various financial institutions, cryptocurrency exchanges, and in BTMs owned and leased by the Company.

Cash in transit consists of cash that is picked up by armored truck companies from the Company’s BTM machines but not yet deposited in the Company’s bank accounts.
As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Company had cash in transit of $1.7 million and $2.6 million, respectively. Management evaluates cash in transit
based on outstanding cash deposits on cash picked up by the armored truck companies, historical cash deposits and cash that is lost during transit, which is immaterial. The
armored truck companies maintain insurance over theft and losses.

(e) Cryptocurrencies

Cryptocurrencies are a unit of account that function as a medium of exchange on a respective blockchain network, a digital and decentralized ledger that keeps a record of
all transactions that take place across a peer-to-peer network. The Company’s cryptocurrencies primarily consisted of Bitcoin (“BTC”) as of and for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2025 and for the year ended December 31, 2024.

The Company purchases cryptocurrencies, which are held in the Company’s hot wallets, on a just-in-time basis to facilitate sales to customers and mitigate exposure to
volatility in cryptocurrency prices. The Company sells its cryptocurrencies to its customers from its BTMs and BDCheckout locations in exchange for cash, for a
prescribed transaction fee applied to the current market price of the cryptocurrency at the time of the transaction, plus a predetermined markup. When cryptocurrency is
sold to customers, the Company relieves the carrying amount, measured at fair value as of the most recent remeasurement date, on a first-in, first-out basis within cost of
revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization). The Company has control and ownership of its cryptocurrencies which are stored in both the Company’s proprietary
hot wallets and hot wallets hosted by a third-party, BitGo, Inc.

In June 2024, the Company began allocating a portion of its cash reserves to Bitcoin. As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Company had Bitcoin of
$11.4 million (recorded at fair value) and $0.6 million (recorded at adjusted cost basis), respectively, allocated to its treasury strategy within Cryptocurrencies on its
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On January 1, 2025, the Company adopted ASU 2023-08 "Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60) Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto
Assets" (“ASU 2023-08”). See Note 3. Beginning January 1, 2025, cryptocurrencies are recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. In 2024,
prior to the adoption of ASU 2023-08, cryptocurrencies were recorded on the Company’s consolidated Balance Sheets at cost, less impairment charges, if any.

We determine and record the fair value of our cryptocurrencies in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement (“ASC 820”), based on quoted prices on the active
exchange that we have determined is the principal market for such assets (Level | inputs). We determine the cost basis of our cryptocurrencies using the specific
identification of each unit received. For all cryptocurrencies during periods prior to January 1, 2025, impairment losses were recognized within Cost of Revenue in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which the impairment was identified. For periods after January 1, 2025, realized and unrealized gains and losses for
cryptocurrencies held as investments are recorded in Other income (expense), net, and realized and unrealized gains and losses and cryptocurrencies used to facilitate sales
are recorded in Cost of Revenue in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

The related cash flows from revenue generating cryptocurrency transactions are presented as cash flows from operating activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows. The related cash flows from investments in and sales of cryptocurrencies held for investment purposes are presented as cash flows from investing activities on the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The primary purpose of the Company’s operations is to buy and sell Bitcoin using its BTM network and other services. The Company does not engage in broker-dealer
activities. The Company uses various exchanges and liquidity providers to purchase, liquidate and manage its cryptocurrency positions; however, this does not impact the

accounting for these assets.
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See Notes 2(j) and 2(k) to the consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the Company’s revenue recognition and cost of revenue related to the
Company’s cryptocurrencies.

(f) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Finance leases are stated at the present value of the future minimum lease payments, less
accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. The cost of assets sold, retired, or otherwise disposed of, and the related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from their respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income upon
disposition.

Depreciation of property and equipment is determined using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of estimated useful life or life of the lease
Kiosk machines (BTMs) - owned 7 years
Kiosk machines (BTMs) - leased 7 years or life of the lease

Depreciation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 totaled $1.5 million and $4.5 million, respectively.
Depreciation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 totaled $1.9 million and $7.1 million, respectively.

(g) Collaborative Arrangement

In March 2025, the Company entered into a collaborative arrangement under ASC 808, Collaborative Arrangements (ASC 808) with an Australian digital currency
exchange provider registered with the Australian Transaction Reports and Analysis Centre (AUSTRAC) ("Partner"), authorized to provide virtual asset exchange and
bullion trading services within Australia. The purpose of the arrangement is the deployment and operation of an Australian BTM network. In connection with the
arrangement, the Company funds and imports the BTMs, programs kiosk software for compliant transactions, procures Know Your Customer (KYC) and Anti-Money
Laundering (AML) vendor support, and provides ongoing operational support, marketing, and day-to-day project management. The Partner provides the virtual-asset
exchange services to BTM customers, including AML and Counter-Terrorism Financing (CTF) compliance. This arrangement is accounted for as a collaborative
arrangement under ASC 808 due to both parties actively participating in the operation of the Australian BTM program and performing distinct, complementary activities in
pursuing a common commercial objective, without the formation of a separate legal entity or shared equity ownership. Under the arrangement, the Partner is entitled to the
greater of 6.5% of gross profit from Australian BTM operations or a minimum weekly retainer. The Company recognized revenue from third-party customer transactions
on a gross basis under ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606) as principal. Amounts arising from transactions between the participants are
recorded in cost of revenue or selling, general and administrative expenses based on the nature of the costs. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
amounts attributable to transactions between the participants were immaterial.

(h) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset group may not be fully
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset group to its fair value, which is normally
determined through analysis of the future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset group. If such asset group is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount that the carrying amount of the asset group exceeds the fair value of the asset group. There were no impairments of long-lived assets
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.

(i) Goodwill and Intangible Assets, net

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the estimated fair value of the acquired assets, assumed liabilities, and any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity in a business combination. The Company tests for impairment at least annually, or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. The Company performs its annual test for impairment as of October 1 at the
reporting unit level. There was no impairment of goodwill for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.
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Intangible assets, net consists of tradenames, customer relationships, and software applications. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated lives
and evaluated for impairment when an event or change in circumstances occurs that warrants such a review. Management periodically evaluates whether changes to
estimated useful lives of intangible assets are necessary to ensure its estimates accurately reflect the economic use of the related intangible assets.

(j) Revenue Recognition

BTMs and BDCheckout

Revenue is principally derived from the sale of cryptocurrencies at the point-of-sale on transactions initiated by customers. These customer-initiated transactions are
governed by terms and conditions agreed to at the time of each point-of-sale transaction and do not extend beyond the transaction. The Company charges a fee at the
transaction level. The transaction price for the customer is the price of the cryptocurrency, which is based on the exchange value at the time of the transaction, plus a
markup, and a flat fee. The exchange value is determined using real-time exchange prices and the markup percentage is determined by the Company and depends on the
current market, competition, the geography of the location of the sale, and the method of purchase.

The Company’s revenue from contracts with customers is principally composed of a single performance obligation to provide cryptocurrencies when customers buy
cryptocurrencies at a BTM or through BDCheckout. BDCheckout sales are similar to sales from BTM in that, customers buy cryptocurrencies with cash; however, the
BDCheckout transactions are completed at the checkout counter of retail locations, initiated using the Bitcoin Depot mobile app instead of through a BTM. Regardless of
the method by which the customer purchases the cryptocurrency, the Company considers its performance obligation satisfied when control of the cryptocurrency is
transferred to the customer, which is at the point in time the cryptocurrency is transferred to the customer’s cryptocurrency wallet and the transaction is validated on the
blockchain.

The typical process time for our transactions with customers is 30 minutes or less. Contract liabilities are amounts received from customers in advance of the Company
transferring the cryptocurrencies to the customer’s wallet and the transaction being validated on the blockchain. Contract liabilities are presented in “Deferred revenue” on
the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024.

Judgment is required in determining whether the Company is the principal or the agent in transactions with customers. The Company evaluates the presentation of revenue
on a gross or net basis based on whether it controls the cryptocurrency before control is transferred to the customer (gross) or whether it acts as an agent by arranging for
other customers on the platform to provide the cryptocurrency to the customer (net). The Company controls the cryptocurrency before it is transferred to the customer, has
ownership risk related to the cryptocurrency (including market price volatility), sets the transaction fee to be charged, and is responsible for transferring the cryptocurrency
to the customer upon purchase. Therefore, the Company is the principal in transactions with customers and presents revenue and cost of revenue (excluding depreciation
and amortization) from the sale of cryptocurrencies on a gross basis.

(k) Cost of Revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization)

The Company’s cost of revenue consists primarily of direct costs related to selling cryptocurrencies and operating the Company’s network of BTMs. The cost of revenue
(excluding depreciation and amortization) caption includes cryptocurrency expenses, floorspace lease expenses, and kiosk operations expenses.

Cryptocurrency expenses

Cryptocurrency expenses include the cost of cryptocurrencies, fees paid to obtain cryptocurrencies, gains on sales of cryptocurrencies on exchange, fees paid to operate the
software on the BTMs, and fees paid to transfer cryptocurrencies to customers.

Floorspace lease expenses

Floorspace lease expenses include lease expense related to the placement of BTMs.

Kiosk operations expenses

Kiosk operations expenses include the cost of kiosk repair and maintenance and the cost of armored trucks to collect and transport cash deposited into the BTMs.
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The Company presents cost of revenue in the Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income exclusive of depreciation related to BTMs and amortization of intangible assets
related to software applications, tradenames and customer relationships.

(1) Advertising

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expenses were $1.7 million and $4.9 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively. Advertising expenses were $1.5 million and $4.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively. Amounts are included in
selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

(m) Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company is the USD. The functional currency of Express Vending, Inc. is the Canadian Dollar. The functional currency of AUS BTM
Pty Ltd. is the Australian Dollar. All revenue, cost and expense accounts are translated at an average of exchange rates in effect during the period. Assets and liabilities
recorded in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date. The resulting translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component
of Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity, identified as accumulated other comprehensive loss.

(n) Income Taxes
Bitcoin Depot Inc. is treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes.

As a result of the Up-C Restructuring, the transaction was stepped together as a single-tax-free reorganization pursuant to Section 368(a)(1)(A) for federal income tax
purposes. As a result of the Up-C Restructuring, BT HoldCo is now wholly owned by the Company through BCD Merger Sub, LLC and with the consent of BT
HoldCo, has elected under the Internal Revenue Code and similar state statutes to be a disregarded entity. Bitcoin Depot Operating, LLC is a single-member limited
liability company and owned by BT HoldCo through Kiosk HoldCo LLC, and with the consent of BT HoldCo, has elected under the Internal Revenue Code and similar
state statutes to be a disregarded entity. In lieu of federal corporate income taxes, Bitcoin Depot Operating, LLC and BT HoldCo reflects its operating results on the
Company's federal tax return. BCD Merger Sub, LLC, a single-member limited liability company and owned by Bitcoin Depot, Inc, has elected under the Internal
Revenue Code and similar state statutes to be a disregarded entity. In lieu of federal corporate income taxes, BCD Merger Sub, LLC reflects its operating results on the
Company's federal tax return. As a result of the Up-C Restructuring, BT HoldCo’s inside basis cumulative timing differences will shift to the Company and the outside
basis differences at the Company would become the inside basis differences of BT HoldCo. The revaluation between the inside and outside basis difference of the
cumulative temporary differences was booked as a discrete item through tax expense.

Mintz Assets, Inc., is treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes. Intuitive Software, LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary, Digital Gold, are treated as
corporations for federal income tax purposes. BitAccess Inc. and Express Vending, Inc., are each taxed as Canadian corporations. For the nine months ended September
30, 2025 and 2024, there was no activity for Mintz Assets, Inc., Intuitive Software, LLC, BitAccess Inc., Digital Gold and Express Vending, Inc. As such, there were no
federal income taxes for these entities.

Deferred taxes are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax basis and net operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

The effect of any tax rate change on deferred taxes is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date of the tax rate change. Realization of deferred tax assets
is assessed on an annual basis and, unless a deferred tax asset is more likely than not to be utilized, a valuation allowance is recorded to write down the deferred tax
assets to their net realizable value. In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether it is more-likely-than-not that some
portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those deductible temporary differences reverse. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred income tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. For uncertain income tax positions, the Company uses a more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold based on the technical merits of the income tax position taken. Income tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are
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measured in order to determine the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements. The Company recognizes accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits as
part of income tax expense. Penalties, if incurred, are recognized as a component of income tax expense.

(0) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Certain assets and liabilities are reported or disclosed at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the Company’s principal market for such transactions. If the Company has not established a
principal market for such transactions, fair value is determined based on the most advantageous market. The Company uses a three-level hierarchy that prioritizes fair
value measurements based on the types of inputs used for the various valuation techniques. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

*Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

«Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are either directly or indirectly observable, such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data
for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

*Level 3: Inputs that are generally unobservable, supported by little or no market activity, and typically reflect management’s estimates of assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

The categorization of an asset or liability within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The valuation
techniques used by the Company when measuring fair value maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

(p) Share-Based Compensation

BitAccess

The Company maintains an equity award plan under which the officers and employees of BitAccess were awarded various types of share-based compensation, including
options to purchase shares of BitAccess’ common stock and restricted stock units.

For stock options, share-based compensation expense is based on the fair value of the awards on the date of grant, as estimated using

the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The model requires management to make a number of assumptions, including the fair value and expected volatility of BitAccess'
underlying BitAccess common stock price, expected life of the option, risk-free interest rate, and expected dividend yield. The fair value of the underlying stock is the
estimated fair value of BitAccess common stock on the date of grant. The expected stock price volatility assumption for BitAccess' stock is determined by using a
weighted average of the historical stock price volatility of comparable companies from a representative peer group, as BitAccess stock is not actively traded. The
Company uses historical exercise information and contractual terms of options to estimate the expected term. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the expected life
of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury zero coupon bonds with terms consistent with the expected term of the award at the time of grant. The expected dividend yield
assumption is based on BitAccess’ history and expectation of no dividend payouts.

2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan

In conjunction with the close of the Merger the Company established the Bitcoin Depot Inc. 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”) under which officers,
directors, and employees may be awarded various types of share-based compensation, including but not limited to, restricted stock, stock options, and restricted stock

units. Under the Incentive Plan, the Company has granted time-based and performance-based restricted stock units ("RSUs"). The Company recognizes compensation
expense for the RSUs in accordance with ASC 718 - Compensation - Stock Compensation, ("ASC 718").

For RSUs, share-based compensation expense is based on the fair value of the Company’s Class A common stock at the closing price on the day before the date of grant.
Share-based compensation expense associated with time-based RSUs is recognized on a straight-line basis over the award’s requisite service period (generally the vesting
period). Share-based compensation expense associated with performance-based RSUs is determined based on the number of performance-based RSUs that are earned
based on the Company's
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achievement of certain adjusted EBITDA targets that are determined and approved by the Company's Compensation Committee at its sole discretion. Forfeitures of
awards granted under the Incentive Plan are accounted for at the time the forfeiture occurs.

(q) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an entity for which separate financial information is available and that is regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (the “CODM?”) in deciding how to allocate resources to an individual segment and in assessing performance. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer is
the Company’s CODM. The CODM reviews financial information presented on a global, consolidated basis for purposes of making operating decisions, allocating
resources, and evaluating financial performance. As such, the Company has determined that it operates as one operating segment and one reportable segment.

(r) Net Income Per Share Attributable to Class A and Class M Common Stock

Basic earnings per share of Class A and Class M common stock is computed by dividing net income attributable to the Company by the weighted-average number of
shares of Class A and Class M common stock outstanding and Series A Preferred Stock outstanding, which has similar economic rights to the Class A common stock
during the same period. Diluted net income per share of Class A and Class M common stock is computed by dividing net income attributable to the Company by the
weighted-average number of shares of Class A and Class M common stock outstanding adjusted to give effect to potentially dilutive securities. Potential shares of
common stock consist of incremental shares issuable upon the assumed exercise of stock options and warrants and vesting of RSUs, as applicable. The weighted-average
shares outstanding used to compute net income per common share, basic and diluted, were 67,822,957 and 20,701,447 for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and
2024, respectively, and 42,165,276 and 18,908,391 for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

(s) Litigation

The Company assesses legal contingencies in accordance with ASC 450 - Contingencies and determines whether a legal contingency is probable, reasonably possible or
remote. When contingencies become probable and can be reasonably estimated, the Company records an estimate of the probable loss. When contingencies are considered
probable or reasonably possible but cannot be reasonably estimated, the Company discloses the contingency when the probable or reasonably possible loss could be
material. Legal costs are expensed in the period in which the costs are incurred.

(¢) Earnouts

At the close of the Merger, GSRM received a total of 1,075,761 earnout shares ("Sponsor Earnout Shares") in the form of Class-E common stock of the Company. In
December 2024, the BT HoldCo Founder Preferred Units were converted into BT HoldCo Common Units in connection with the payment of a $29 million distribution to
the holders of the Founder Preferred Units. During the three months ended March 31, 2025, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock exercised their option to convert
the Series A Preferred Stock for Class A common stock on a 1:1 basis. In conjunction with the conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock, the BT HoldCo Preferred Units
were automatically converted into BT HoldCo Common Units. The conversion of the outstanding BT HoldCo Preferred Units triggered the automatic conversion of the
Class E common stock into Class A common stock. As of June 30, 2025, the Company did not have any Class E common stock outstanding.

In addition to the Sponsor Earnout Shares, certain owners of BT HoldCo are entitled to receive an additional 15,000,000 BT HoldCo Earnout Units (“BT Earnout”).
Pursuant to the Up-C Restructuring, the BT Earnout Units were cancelled and replaced with an equal amount of Contingent Equity Rights (CERs). The CERs are
structured similarly to the Sponsor Earnout Shares with consistent milestones and vesting conditions.

The Company evaluated the Sponsor Earnout Shares and CERs under ASC 815-40, Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity, and concluded equity
classification is appropriate. As equity-classified contracts, the Sponsor Earnout Shares are not subject to remeasurement provided the conditions for equity-classification
continue to be met. The Sponsor Earnout Shares have been recorded in connection with the reverse recapitalization accounting as part of the adjustment to accumulated
deficit due to the absence of additional paid in capital.

(u) Warrants

In connection with the Merger, the Company assumed a total of 43,848,750 Warrants, consisting of 31,625,000 Public Warrants and 12,223,750 Private Placement
Warrants issued by GSRM which continue to be outstanding following the Merger. Each whole warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of Class A common stock
at a price of $11.50 per share. The outstanding Warrants are
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accounted for as freestanding equity contracts and are classified in equity under ASC 815-40, Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity.
(v) Emerging Growth Company Status

The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), as modified by the Jumpstart
our Business Startups Act of 2012, (the “JOBS Act”), and it may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other
public companies that are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in its periodic reports and proxy statements.

(3) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Pronouncement Adopted

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07 "Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures". The amendments require entities
to disclose significant segment expenses impacting profit and loss that are regularly provided to the CODM. In addition, the amendments enhance interim disclosure
requirements, clarify circumstances in which an entity can disclose multiple segment measures of profit or loss, provide new segment disclosure requirements for entities
with a single reportable segment, and contain other disclosure requirements. The update is required to be applied retrospectively to prior periods presented, based on the
significant segment expense categories identified and disclosed in the period of adoption. The amendments are required to be adopted for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this accounting
standard effective January 1, 2024, which resulted in additional segment disclosures primarily related to significant expenses that are regularly provided to the CODM.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-08 "Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60) Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto Assets".
ASU 2023-08 requires entities to measure crypto assets that meet the scope criteria at fair value and to reflect changes in fair value in net income each reporting period. The
amendments in ASU 2023-08 also require entities to present crypto assets measured at fair value separately from other intangible assets on the balance sheet and changes in
the fair value measurement of crypto assets separately from changes in the carrying amounts of other intangible assets on the income statement. The amendments in the
ASU are effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted for both
interim and annual financial statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance. The Company adopted this accounting standard on a modified
retrospective approach effective January 1, 2025. See Note 12, Cryptocurrencies, for the inclusion of the new required disclosures. The cumulative effect of the changes
made on our January 1, 2025 consolidated balance sheet for the adoption of ASU 2023-08 was as follows (in thousands):

Adjustments from Adoption of

Balances at December 31, 2024 ASU 2023-08 Balances at January 1, 2025
Assets
Cryptocurrencies $ 1,510 §$ 852 § 2,362
Stockholders' (deficit) equity
Accumulated deficit $ (44349) $ 852 § (43,497)

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09 "Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (Topic 740)". The ASU requires companies to break out their income tax
expense, income tax rate reconciliation and income tax payments made in more detail. For public companies, the requirements became effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this accounting standard effective January 1, 2025 with no impact on interim financial
statements.

Accounting Pronouncement Pending Adoption

In October 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-06, "Disclosure Improvements: Codification Amendments in Response to the SEC'’s Disclosures Update and Simplification
Initiative". The guidance amends certain disclosure and presentation requirements related to the statement of cash flows, accounting changes and error corrections, earnings
per share, interim reporting, commitments, debt, equity, derivatives, transfers and services and various industry specific guidance. For entities subject to the SEC's existing
disclosure requirements, the effective date for each amendment will be the date on which the SEC's removal of that related disclosure from Regulation S-X or Regulation S-
K becomes effective. However, if by June 30, 2027, the SEC has not removed the existing disclosure
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requirements, the amendments will not become effective. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is still assessing the impacts of this guidance to its consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, "Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income - Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40)". The
ASU requires expanded disclosures and disaggregation of certain expenses included within the income statement. The amendments become effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2027. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is still assessing the
impacts of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2025, the FASB issued ASU 2025-03, "Business Combinations (Topic 805) and Consolidation (Topic 810): Determining the Accounting Acquirer in the Acquisition
of a Variable Interest Entity". The ASU eliminates the presumption that the primary beneficiary of a VIE is automatically the accounting acquirer when a VIE business is
obtained primarily through an exchange of equity interests. ASU 2025-03 becomes effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2026 and is to be
applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is still assessing the impacts of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

(4) Segment Reporting

The Company operates as a single operating segment, with the Chief Executive Officer serving as the CODM. The CODM evaluates performance and allocates resources
on a consolidated basis, reviewing financial and operational information for the entire organization rather than assessing discrete product or service lines or geographic
locations. The Company concluded that it has a single reportable segment based on the similarity of the Company's products and services, its common customer base and
the comparable regulatory environment in which it operates.

Revenue is primarily generated through cash paid by customers to purchase Bitcoin from the Company's BTMs with a minimal amount of revenue generated from other
products and services. See Note 6 - Revenue for more information on the Company's revenue generating products and services.

As of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, substantially all of the Company's revenue was generated in the U.S., and substantially all of its long-
lived assets were located in the US.

As the CODM focuses on overall Company performance, any asset information used for decision-making purposes aligns with the consolidated totals presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. See the Consolidated Balance Sheets for additional information on the Company's asset composition.

The CODM considers multiple measures of profit or loss such as, EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Net Income and uses these measures to assess the Company's overall
performance, compare actual results to budgets, and guide decisions on capital investments and other resource allocations.

The table below summarizes net income related segment information used by the CODM to evaluate the Company's performance (in thousands):
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Revenue

Cost of cryptocurrency sold (1)

Armored cash collection

Wireless connectivity costs

(Gain) loss on foreign currency transactions
Share-based compensation

Kiosk shipping and services

Floorspace leases

Bank fees

Unrealized (gain) on cryptocurrency held for investment
Payroll costs

Advertising and marketing costs
Professional fees

Operating software costs

Interest expense, net

Income tax expense (benefit)

Amortization
Depreciation
Other segment items @

Net income

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended September 30,

2025
$ 162,482 $
116,318
1,694
1,056
(215)
2,185
646
9,804
757
(690)
6,293
1,679
2,998
1,055
4,133

3,042

382
1,518
4,340

$ 5487 §

2024

135271 §

97,555

2312

660

29

412

1,208

10,007

793

6,809
1,458
2,716

974
2,907

347

383
1,862
2,540
2,299 §

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2025
498,816
356,826

5,192
2,695
%95)
3,257
2,218
28,934
2,446
(1,911)
17,788
4,893
9,032
3,229
11,927

5,656
1,133
4,533
11,078
29,985

2024
$ 436,876
327,778
6,215
1,905
294
3,037
4,317
27,663
2,270

18,507
4,761
7,177
2,715

10,731

479

1,116

7,068

8,422

$ 2,421

(1) Includes cryptocurrency impairments for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 of $2.5 million and $6.6 million, respectively.

(2) Includes insurance and other expenses.

(5) Related Party Transactions

Total cash distributions made to BT Assets during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 were $0.2 million and $10.4 million, respectively, and are accounted
for as tax distributions. Total cash distributions made to BT Assets during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 were $15.0 million and $22.7 million,
respectively. Cash distributions are classified as cash outflows from financing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The total cash and non-cash

distributions are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Member's Equity.

Under the terms of the Operating Agreement distributions made after the closing of the Merger are considered tax distributions.

At the closing of the Merger, the Company entered into a Tax Receivable Agreement with BT HoldCo and BT Assets. Pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement, the
Company was generally required to pay BT Assets 85% of the amount of savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state, local, and foreign income taxes that the Company realized, or
in certain circumstances was deemed to realize. In connection with the Up-C Restructuring, the Tax Receivable Agreement was terminated. See Note 2a Basis of

Presentation Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 15 Income Taxes for further discussion.

In connection with the closing of the Merger, the Company entered into separate indemnification agreements with its directors and executive officers. These agreements,
among other things, require the Company to indemnify its directors and executive officers for certain costs, charges and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, judgments,
fines and settlement amounts, reasonably incurred by a director or executive officer in any action or proceeding because of their association with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. No amounts have been recognized related to these agreements as of September 30, 2025.
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During 2024, the Company had declared and paid a $29.0 million preferred distribution to BT Assets as a return of BT Asset's preference over common units on the
preferred units it holds in BT HoldCo. The distribution amounts reduce the preferred dividend attributable to the Non-Controlling Interest from $29.0 million to a remaining
balance of $0 million.

On July 10, 2024, the Company entered into a Kiosk Service Agreement with an entity owned by the CEO, that owns and operates kiosks unrelated to the Company’s
Bitcoin ATM business. The agreement provides for the following services: kiosk placement, treasury management and other back-office services. The Company will receive
30% of the net profit as compensation. The Company did not have any revenue and only incurred an immaterial amount of start-up costs related to this agreement as of
September 30, 2025.

On May 30, 2025, the Company entered into and consummated an Up-C Restructuring. Pursuant to the Up-C Restructuring, as consideration for the termination of the Tax
Receivable Agreement, as of September 30, 2025, the Company has made cash payments to the former stockholders of BT Assets (including Mr. Mintz and his affiliated
entities) in the amount of $9.1 million. See Note 2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further discussion.

(6) Revenue

Revenue disaggregated by revenue stream is as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
BTM Revenue $ 162,161 $ 134,851 $ 497,805 $ 434,918
Other Revenue 321 420 1,011 1,958
Total Revenue $ 162,482 $ 135,271 $ 498,816 $ 436,876

(7) Cost of Revenue (Excluding Depreciation and Amortization)

The following table presents cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) by category (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Cryptocurrency expenses $ 116318 $ 97,555 $ 356,826 $ 327,778
Floorspace lease expenses 9,804 10,007 28,934 27,663
Kiosk operations expenses 6.235 5291 17,070 15.407
Total Cost of Revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization reported
Separately) $ 132,357 $ 112,853 $ 402,830 $ 370,848
The following table presents the components of cryptocurrency expenses (in thousands):
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Cost of Cryptocurrency (1) - BTM Kiosk $ 116247  $ 97,425 $ 356,579 $ 326,734
Other cryptocurrency expenses 71 130 247 1,044
Total cryptocurrency expenses $ 116,318 § 97,555  $ 356,826 § 327,778

(1)Prior to the adoption of ASC 2023-08, Cost of Cryptocurrency ("ASU 2023-08") included impairment losses recognized on cryptocurrencies net of any gains
recognized from sales of cryptocurrencies on an exchange. Impairment charges of $2.5 million and $6.6 million were included in Cost of Cryptocurrency during the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively. Subsequent to the adoption of ASU 2023-08 on January 1, 2025, realized and unrealized gains and
losses on cryptocurrencies during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 included in Cost of Cryptocurrency were immaterial.
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The following table reconciles amounts excluded from the cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) caption in the Consolidated Statements of Income
included in total depreciation and amortization expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the period presented (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Depreciation of owned BTM kiosks $ 1,161 $ 970 $ 3438 § 3,505
Depreciation of leased BTM kiosks 351 880 1,076 3,469
Amortization of intangible assets 382 383 1,133 1,116
Total depreciation and amortization excluded from cost of revenue $ 1,894 % 2,233 $ 5,647 $ 8,090
Other depreciation and amortization included in operating expenses 6 12 19 94
Total depreciation and amortization $ 1,900 $ 2,245 $ 5,666 $ 8,184

(8) Fair Value Measurements
The Company's cryptocurrency holdings are measured at fair value on a recurring basis based on Level 1 inputs.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

The Company’s non-financial assets, such as goodwill, intangible assets, property and equipment and operating lease right-of-use assets are adjusted down to fair value
when an impairment charge is recognized. Certain fair value measurements are based predominantly on Level 3 inputs. No impairment charges related to goodwill,
intangible assets, operating lease right-of-use assets and property and equipment have been recognized for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.

Assets and Liabilities Not Measured and Recorded at Fair Value

The Company considers the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses in the consolidated financial
statements to approximate fair value due to their short maturities.

The carrying value of the notes payable related to the Company's franchise profit sharing arrangements was initially determined as the initial investment and is updated
quarterly using a retrospective interest method. The effective interest rate used is determined based on actual and projected profit sharing payments which are generally
unobservable inputs and are considered Level 3 fair value estimates. As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 the estimated carrying value and fair value of the
notes payable related to the franchise profit sharing arrangements was approximately $39.9 million and $16.7 million, respectively.

The Company estimates the fair value of its fixed rated notes payable based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, which is considered a Level 2 valuation input.

As of September 30, 2025, the estimated fair value of the fixed-rate notes were approximately $27.1 million and the carrying value was $27.7 million. As of December 31,
2024, the estimated fair value of the fixed-rate notes were approximately $39.3 million and the carrying value was $39.5 million.

(9) Prepaid expenses and other current assets

The following table presents Prepaid expenses and other current assets (in thousands):

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Prepaid expenses $ 4311  $ 1,828
Other current assets 464 1,248
Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 4,775  $ 3,076
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(10) Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

The following table presents Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (in thousands):

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Payables to liquidity providers $ 2,163 $ 2,246
Accrued expenses 17,219 12,014
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 19,382 $ 14,260

(11) Non-controlling interests

The following table presents the changes in the balances of non-controlling interests for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024 (in thousands):

BitAccess BT HoldCo Total

Beginning balance January 1, 2025 $ 2,674 % 4,472 $ 7,146
Distributions — (2,477) (2,477)
Share-based compensation expense 8 — 8
Foreign currency translation — 89) 89)
Net (loss) income 49) 8,031 7,982
Balance March 31, 2025 $ 2,633 $ 9,937 § 12,570
Distributions — (7,640) (7,640)
Share-based compensation expense 8 — 8
Distribution related to Up-C Restructuring — (8,595) (8,595)
Foreign currency translation — 59) 59)
Net (loss) income (104) 6,357 6,253
Ending balance June 30, 2025 $ 2,537 $ — $ 2,537
Distributions — — —
Share-based compensation expense 8 — 8
Distribution related to Up-C Restructuring — — —
Foreign currency translation ©6) — ©6)
Net (loss) (57) — (57)
Ending balance September 30, 2025 $ 2,482 § — 2,482
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BitAccess BT HoldCo Total
Beginning balance January 1, 2024 $ 2,707 $ 22,480 $ 25,187
Distributions — 916) ©16)
Share-based compensation expense 8 — 8
Foreign currency translation — 9 9
Net income (loss) 4 (2,694) (2,690)
Balance March 31, 2024 $ 2,719 § 18,879 $ 21,598
Distributions — (6,832) (6,832)
Share-based compensation expense 8 — 8
Foreign currency translation 4 4
Redemption of non-controlling interest — (585) (585)
Net income (loss) 40 6,871 6,911
Ending balance June 30, 2024 $ 2,767 § 18,337 $ 21,104
Distributions — (15,000) (15,000)
Share-based compensation expense — — —
Foreign currency translation 8 (13) 5)
Redemption of non-controlling interest — — —
Net (loss) income (128) 3,366 3,238
Ending balance September 30, 2024 $ 2,647 $ 6,090 $ 9,337

Non-controlling Interest - BitAccess

In July 2021, the Company obtained a controlling interest in BitAccess Inc. in a business combination. The un-affiliated interest in BitAccess Inc. is reported as non-
controlling interests in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. As of both September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the non-controlling interest ownership

was 17.86%.

The non-controlling interest has certain rights as defined in the Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement, including the right, but not the obligation, to cause the

Company to purchase the non-controlling interest immediately prior to a liquidity event (as defined in the Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement) at the fair value
of the non-controlling interest as of the liquidity event. The non-controlling interest is not mandatorily redeemable. The Company also holds a right, but not an obligation, to
cause the non-controlling interest holders to sell the non-controlling interest under the same conditions. The Merger was not considered to be a liquidity event as defined in
the agreement.

Non-controlling Interest - BT HoldCo

As a result of the Up-C Restructuring transaction, income attributable to BT HoldCo of $6.4 million was apportioned through the date of the transaction. As of May 30,
2025, there is no longer a balance in non-controlling interests in BT HoldCo. See Note 2a for further discussion of the Up-C Restructuring.

(12) Cryptocurrencies

Cryptocurrency transactions
The following tables present additional information about the cost basis and fair value of cryptocurrencies, including those allocated to the Company's treasury strategy (in
thousands, except units):

Cryptocurrency Inventory @ September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

Units Cost Basis Fair Value Carrying Value
Bitcoin (BTC) 1923  § 1,966 $ 2,195 $ 949

(1) As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Company had an insignificant amount of Ethereum.
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Cryptocurrency Investments September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Units Cost Basis Fair Value Carrying Value
Bitcoin (BTC) 10035 $ 9,095 $ 11439 § 561

Cryptocurrency investment balance is classified as a short-term asset due to anticipation that the assets will be used to provide short-term liquidity.

As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Company had $2.2 million due to liquidity providers related to Bitcoin purchased during the period. These amounts
are paid in cash, generally within one week from which the expenses are incurred and are presented within “Accrued expenses and other current liabilities” on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

(13) Notes Payable
Credit Agreement

On December 21, 2020, the Company entered into a credit agreement with a financial institution (the "Credit Agreement") which provided for initial term loans in an
aggregate principal amount of $25.0 million. On June 23, 2023, the Company amended and restated its credit agreement (the "Amended and Restated Note") with its
existing lender. Under the Amended and Restated Note, the Company refinanced $20.8 million of the note which is subject to an annual interest at a rate of 17% per annum.

On March 26, 2024, the Company entered into an amendment to the Amended and Restated Note (the “Second Amended and Restated Note) dated June 23, 2023 to
provide an additional $15.7 million in principal financing. This amendment increased the aggregate principal amount of the term loan facility to $35.6 million which
consists of $19.9 million which was outstanding under the original loan and $15.7 million in additional principal resulting in net cash flow of $15.2 million related to the
amendment. The Company accounted for the Second Amended and Restated Note as an extinguishment of debt in accordance with ASC 470, Debt. As such, the Company
recognized the outstanding deferred financing costs of $3.2 million as a loss on extinguishment of debt in interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income which
consisted of a $2.7 million write off unamortized deferred loan costs and $0.5 million in loan origination fees related to the amendment.

As a part of the amendment, the Company incurred an additional exit fee of $1.3 million which is due upon either maturity or the prepayment of the note. The total deferred
financing costs associated with the amendment were $1.4 million (which includes the exit fee of $1.3 million) and are reflected as a reduction of the note proceeds. The
Company will recognize these deferred financing costs, using the effective interest method over the term of the note.

On March 14, 2025, the Company entered into an amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Note ("Amendment No.1 of the Second Amended and Restated Note").
Pursuant to Amendment No.1 of the Second Amended and Restated Note, the maturity date of the loans was extended from June 23, 2026 to December 15, 2027 and the
amortization schedule was revised to reflect the extended maturity date. The Company accounted for the amendment as a debt modification in accordance with ASC 470,
Debt.

In the second quarter of 2025, the Company made an early repayment towards the outstanding loan amount, resulting in a reduction in the outstanding loan amount of $5.0
million. The early repayment did not result in any other changes to the loan and the maturity date remains December 15, 2027.

Other Debt
Kiosk Profit Share Franchise Arrangements

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company entered into five kiosk franchise profit sharing arrangements. Under the terms of the agreements, the third
parties receive a share in the profits generated by a group of specifically identified kiosks for a specified period of time. As a result of consideration received up front, the
Company determined these arrangements were accounted for as debt in accordance with ASC 470, Debt. The Company recorded debt of $20.7 million during the nine
months ended September 30, 2025, as a result of these franchise profit sharing arrangements, maturing in March, April, June and August of 2033, with principal and interest
paid monthly via profit sharing payments. The Company did not enter into any new kiosk franchise profit sharing arrangements during the three months ended September
30, 2025.
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During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company entered into seven kiosk franchise profit sharing arrangements. The Company recorded debt of $15.8 million as a
result of these franchise profit sharing arrangements, maturing between February 2029 and February 2033, with principal and interest paid monthly via profit sharing
payments.

The carrying values of the notes payable related to the Company's franchise profit sharing arrangements were initially determined as the initial investment and are updated
quarterly using a retrospective interest method. The effective interest rate used in the calculation of monthly interest is determined based on actual and projected profit
sharing payments and is updated on a quarterly basis under the retrospective interest method.

Equipment Financing

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company entered into five 36-month collateralized term loans for a total amount of $2.6 million to facilitate the purchase of
BTM kiosks. In accordance with the term loans, the kiosks are collateral for the loans. The loans are subject to annual interest rates between 16.86% and 17.42%, with

interest and principal payments due monthly.

Notes payable consisted of the following as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 (in thousands):

Notes Payable as of September 30, 2025 Notes Payable as of December 31, 2024
Credit Credit
Agreement Other Debt Total Agreement Other Debt Total
Credit agreement $ 22,338 § —  $ 22,338 § 33338 §$ — 3 33,338
Other debt — 42,109 42,109 — 19,801 19,801
Plus: exit fee due upon repayment of debt 3,098 — 3,098 3,098 — 3,098
Total notes payable principal outstanding 25,436 42,109 67,545 36,436 19,801 56,237
Less: unamortized deferred financing costs (367) — (367) (758) — (758)
Total notes payable 25,069 42,109 67,178 35,678 19,801 55,479
Less: current portion of notes payable (5,563) (1,898) (7,461) (4,733) (1,289) (6,022)
Notes payable, non-current $ 19,506 $ 40211 $ 59,717  $ 30,945 $ 18,512  § 49,457

At September 30, 2025, aggregate future principal payments are as follows (in thousands):

Aggregate Future Principal Payments at September

30, 2025
Credit
Agreement Other Debt Total
Remainder of 2025 $ — 321§ 321
2026 5,563 2,497 8,060
2027 19,873 3,073 22,946
2028 — 3,606 3,606
2029 — 4910 4,910
Thereafter — 27,702 27,702
Total $ 25,436 § 42,109 $ 67,545

(14) Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity

The Company is authorized to issue seven classes of stock designated, Class A common stock, Class B common stock, Class M common stock, Class O common stock,
Class V common stock (together with Class A common stock, Class B common stock, Class M common stock and Class O common stock, the “Voting Common Stock™)
and Class E common stock (together with the Voting
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Common Stock, the “Common Stock”) and Preferred Stock. The total number of shares of capital stock which the Company shall have authority to issue is 2,272,250,000,
divided into the following:

Series A Preferred Class A Class B Class E Class M Class O Class V
Shares authorized 50,000,000 800,000,000 20,000,000 2,250,000 300,000,000 800,000,000 300,000,000
Shares outstanding — 27,747,562 — — 40,779,094 — —
Par value $ 0.0001 $ 0.0001 $ 0.0001 $ 0.0001 $ 0.0001 $ 0.0001 $ 0.0001

Class A Common Stock
Holders of Class A common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Any dividends paid to the holders of Class A common stock will be paid on a pro rata basis. On a
liquidation event, any distribution to common stockholders is made on a pro rata basis to the holders of the Class A common stock.

Class B Common Stock
Holders of Class B common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Dividends shall not be declared or paid on shares of Class B common stock. On a liquidation event, the
holders of shares of Class B common stock shall not be entitled to receive any assets of the Company in the event of any such liquidation.

Class M Common Stock
Holders of Class M common stock are entitled to ten votes per share. Any dividends paid to the holders of Class M common stock will be paid on a pro rata basis. On a
liquidation event, any distribution to common stockholders is made on a pro rata basis to the holders of the Class M common stock.

Class O Common Stock
Holders of Class O common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Dividends shall not be declared or paid on shares of Class O common stock. On a liquidation event, the
holders of shares of Class O common stock shall not be entitled to receive any assets of the Company in the event of any such liquidation.

Class V Common Stock

Class V common stock are voting, non-economic shares and exchangeable, along with common units of BT HoldCo, into Class A common stock. Shares of Class V
common stock are convertible into an equivalent number of shares (one-for-one) of Class A common stock automatically upon transfer, or BT Assets and its affiliates
ceasing to beneficially own at least 20% of the voting power represented by the shares in Class V common stock.

Class E Common Stock
Class E common stock consisted of three series: 750,000 shares of Class E-1 common stock (which shall not be entitled to vote), 750,000 shares of Class E-2 common stock
(which shall not be entitled to vote), 750,000 shares of Class E-3 common stock (which shall not be entitled to vote).

In December 2024, the BT HoldCo Founder Preferred Units were converted into BT HoldCo Common Units in connection with the payment of a $29 million distribution to
the holders of the Founder Preferred Units. During the three months ended March 31, 2025, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock exercised their option to convert the
Series A Preferred Stock for Class A Common Stock on a 1:1 basis. In conjunction with the conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock, the BT HoldCo Preferred Units
were automatically converted into BT HoldCo Common Units. The conversion of the outstanding BT HoldCo Preferred Units triggered the automatic conversion of the
Class E Common Stock into Class A Common Stock. As of the three months ended March 31, 2025, all shares of Class E common stock have been converted to Class A
common stock.

Series A Preferred Stock

In connection with the Merger and PIPE Financing, on June 30, 2023, the Company issued 4,300,000 shares of its Series A Preferred Stock. Holders of the Series A
Preferred Stock have no voting rights except in certain matters as described in the Company’s Certificate of Designation. There are no other voting rights associated with the
Series A Preferred Stock.
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The Series A Preferred Stock is only entitled to dividends when and if declared by the Company’s Board of Directors (the "Board"). There is no stated dividend preference.
The Series A Preferred Stock participate fully with respect to all distributions and dividends made to the Company’s Class A common stock, including in the event of a
liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company.

The Series A Preferred Stock is convertible at any time at the option of the holders into Class A common stock at an initial exchange ratio of 1:1, as adjusted for any
dilutive events. The Series A Preferred Stock is economically identical to the Company’s Class A common stock and is therefore treated as another class of common stock
for reporting purposes (i.e., net income per share calculation), and is classified in permanent equity. During the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, 1,733,884
and 50,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, respectively, were converted to shares of Class A common stock. During the three months ended March 31, 2025, all
outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock have been converted to Class A common stock at the election of the Series A Preferred Stockholders.

Warrants

There are 43,848,750 warrants outstanding of which 31,625,000 (“Public Warrants”) were issued by GSRM at the time of its IPO and 12,223,750 (“Private Warrants” and
together the “Warrants”) were issued by GSRM to GSR II Meteora Sponsor LLC (“Sponsor”). As a result of the Merger, these Warrants became Bitcoin Depot Warrants.

Each whole Warrant entitles the registered holder to purchase one share of Class A common stock at a price of $11.50 per share. A holder may exercise its warrants only for
a whole number of shares of Class A common stock. No fractional warrants will be issued upon separation of the units and only whole warrants will trade. The Company
may redeem the Public Warrants at a price of $0.01 per share if the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share for any 20
trading days within a 30-trading day period. The Private Warrants cannot be redeemed, even if sold or transferred to a non-affiliate. The Warrants will expire five years after
the Closing Date, June 30, 2028, or earlier upon redemption or liquidation. The Company also has the ability to redeem outstanding Public Warrants at any time after they
become exercisable and prior to their expiration, at a price of $0.01 per Public Warrant, provided that the last reported sale price of Class A common stock for any 20
trading days within a 30-trading day period ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which we send the notice of redemption to the Public Warrant holders equals
or exceeds $18.00 per share and provided certain other conditions are met.

The Private Warrants have terms and provisions that are identical to those of the Public Warrants, except the Private Warrants are not subject to redemption, and do not
become subject to redemption after transfer to a non-affiliate (a distinction from other private placement warrants issued in connection with GSRM transactions).

The Warrants are accounted for as freestanding equity contracts and are classified in equity under ASC 815-40, Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity’s Own
Equity. In connection with the Merger, the Warrants were recorded in connection with the reverse recapitalization accounting as part of the adjustment to accumulated deficit
on the consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity.

Earnouts

In addition to the Sponsor Earnout Shares described above that have all previously been converted into Class A common stock, BT HoldCo also issued (“the BT HoldCo
Earnout Units”), of which 1,075,061 were issued to the Company and 15,000,000 were issued to BT Assets. During the three months ended March 31, 2025, all 1,075,061
shares issued to the Company converted to BT HoldCo common units. On May 30, 2025, pursuant to the Up-C Restructuring, the 15,000,000 BT HoldCo Earnout Units
issued to BT Assets were replaced with 15,000,000 BT HoldCo Contingent Equity Rights with substantially the same economics and vesting terms.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the market price of the Company's Class A common stock did not exceed the required price per share. Additionally, in
accordance with the earnout provisions, the market price of the Company's Class A common stock did not exceed $12.00 per share for any 10 trading days within any
consecutive 20 trading day period after the Merger to achieve the 1st vesting hurdle.

Share repurchase program

On September 22, 2023, the Company announced that its Board has authorized a share repurchase program pursuant to which the Company is authorized to repurchase up
to $10.0 million of outstanding shares of its Class A common stock through and including June 30, 2024. The Company made an accounting policy election to measure the

fair value of purchases or sales of securities, including purchases of its own shares as part of the share repurchase program, as of the trade date.
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During the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company repurchased 69,976 shares at a total cost of $0.2 million with an average cost per share of $2.26.

From the date of authorization through program expiration on June 30, 2024, 190,620 shares of the Company's Class A common stock had been repurchased with a total
cost of $0.4 million.

Equity Offering Program

On November 20, 2024, the Company entered into an At Market Issuance Sales Agreement with certain sales agents (the “ATM Equity Offering”), pursuant to which the
Company may sell, from time-to-time, shares of its Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, having an aggregate offering amount of up to approximately $13.1
million, so long as the total market capitalization of Class A common stock held by non-affiliates is below $75.0 million. If the market capitalization exceeds $75.0 million,
the aggregate offering amount increases to $25.0 million.

On July 1, 2025, the Company terminated its original At Market Issuance Sales Agreement (the “Original ATM Equity Offering”), pursuant to which the Company was
permitted to sell, from time-to-time, shares of its Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share. The Original ATM Equity Offering was capped at a total sale amount
of $25 million because at the time of filing the Company was subject to the “Baby Shelf” rules which limited sales to one-third of the unaffiliated market cap of the
Company. The recent increase in the Company’s stock price has changed the Company’s SEC filing status and it is no longer subject to the “Baby Shelf” rules. As a result,
the Company filed a new registration statement that provides for the sale of up to $100 million of a variety of equity securities, including a new $50 million ATM Equity
Offering program.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 the Company sold 1,796,633 and 4,716,963 shares of its Class A common stock for net proceeds of $8.9
million and $20.9 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2025, $29.1 million of our ATM Equity Offering program remained available for issuance.

Redemptions of LLC Interests

The BT HoldCo Operating Agreement provides that holders of LLC Interests may, from time to time, require the Company to redeem all or a portion of their LLC Interests
for newly-issued shares of Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis. In connection with any redemption or exchange, the Company receives a corresponding number of
LLC Interests, increasing its total ownership interest in BT HoldCo. Simultaneously, and in connection with a redemption, the corresponding number of shares of Class V
common stock and Common BT HoldCo units are surrendered and cancelled. During the year ended December 31 2024, BT Assets exchanged 2,906,976 Class V shares.
This exchange in 2024 resulted in a transfer of 4.3% ownership interest in BT HoldCo from BT Assets to the Company.

Up-C Restructuring

On May 30, 2025, the Company consummated the Up-C Restructuring in which 41,193,024 shares of the Company’s Class V common stock were exchanged for
41,193,024 shares of the Company’s Class M common stock. See Note 2a for discussion on Up-C Restructuring.

(15) Income Taxes

As noted in Note 2, in regards to the Up-C Restructuring, on May 30, 2025, the Company entered into and consummated the transactions contemplated by the Agreement
and Merger Agreement with BT Assets, Mr. Brandon Mintz, the Company’s Founder and Chief Executive Officer, BD Investment Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, BD Investment Holdings II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, BT HoldCo, BCD Merger Sub LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a
direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and BCD Merger Sub Inc., a Delaware corporation and a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, resulting in,
among other things, BT HoldCo becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which is a C-Corporation for federal tax purposes. This transaction described above
was stepped together as a single-tax-free reorganization pursuant to Section 368(a)(1)(A) for federal income tax purposes.

The effective tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively was (15.79%) and (16.52%). During the nine months ended September 30,
2025 and 2024, the Company recognized income tax (expense) of $(5.6) millions and $(0.5)
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million, respectively, on its share of pre-tax book income (loss), of which $0.2 million and $ 0.9 million was attributed to non-controlling interest.

BitAccess Inc. and Express Vending, Inc. are taxed as Canadian corporations. AUS BTM PTY LTD is taxed as an Australian corporation. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2025, and 2024, there was no activity for Mintz Assets, Inc., BitAccess Inc. and Digital Gold. As such, there were no federal income taxes for these entities.

NZ BTM Litd. is taxed as an New Zealand corporation. UK BTM LIMITED is taxed as a UK corporation. HK BTM LIMITED is taxed as a Hong Kong corporation. There
was de minimis activities for these entities and thus no federal income taxes for these entities.

The effective tax rate differs from the statutory U.S. federal rate of 21.0% primarily due to the income or loss not being taxed due to the income and loss flowing through to
its partners pre the Merger Agreement, differences related to the foreign operations, the recognition of the deferred balances of BT HoldCo from the Merger Agreement,
release of valuation allowance for the Company’s outside basis in BT HoldCo from the Merger Agreement, and the recognition of deferred balances of BT HoldCo post
transaction and offset with valuation allowance release.

As of September 30, 2025, management determined based on applicable accounting standards and the weight of all available evidence, it was more likely than not that the
Company will realize its deferred tax assets based on the Company’s historical profitability. Additionally, the Company has released the previously established valuation
allowance with respect to its deferred tax asset related to its investment in BT HoldCo as of September 30, 2025. As a result of the Up-C Restructuring, BT HoldCo’s inside
basis cumulative timing differences will shift to the Company and the outside basis differences at the Company would become the inside basis differences of BT HoldCo.
The revaluation between the inside and outside basis difference of the cumulative temporary differences was booked as a discrete item through tax expense.

Additionally, the Company has an uncertain tax position of $1.3 million due to state tax filings. The Company plans to settle open filings during 2025.

Tax Legislation

On July 4, 2025, President Donald Trump signed into law the reconciliation tax bill, commonly referred to as the “One Big Beautiful Bill Act” (OBBBA), which constitutes
the enactment date under U.S. GAAP. Key corporate tax provisions of the OBBBA include the restoration of 100% bonus depreciation for property acquired and placed in
service after January 19, 2025 and increases the Section 179 expensing limit, the introduction of new Section 174A permitting immediate expensing of domestic research
and experimental (R&E) expenditures and the capability to accelerate the remaining unamortized domestic R&E costs from tax years 2022 through 2024, modifications to
Section 163(j) interest expense limitations, updates to the rules governing global intangible low-taxed income (GILTI) and foreign-derived intangible income (FDII),
amendments to energy credit provisions, and the expansion of Section 162(m) aggregation requirements.

Under U.S. GAAP, the effects of changes in tax laws are recognized in the period in which the new law is enacted. Accordingly,
$1.5 million tax expense was recorded in the Company’s financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2025 to reflect the impact of the OBBBA. The Company
will continue to evaluate the impact for future years and anticipates a reduction to our effective rates for cash taxes paid in years after fiscal 2025.

Tax Receivable Agreement

Upon the completion of the Merger, Bitcoin Depot is party to the Tax Receivable Agreement (“TRA”). Under the terms of that agreement, Bitcoin Depot generally will be
required to pay BT Assets 85% of the tax savings, if any, that Bitcoin Depot Inc. realizes, or in certain circumstances is deemed to realize, as a result of certain tax attributes
that are created as part of and after the Merger. The payment of cash consideration to BT Assets in connection with the transaction will result in aggregate payments under
the TRA of approximately $2.2 million as of March 31, 2025. This amount does not take into account any future exchanges of BT HoldCo Common Units by BT Assets
pursuant to the BT HoldCo Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement. The future amounts payable, as well as the timing of any payments, under the
TRA are dependent upon significant future events, including (but not limited to) the timing of the exchanges of BT HoldCo Common Units and surrender of a corresponding
number of shares of Bitcoin Depot Class V common stock, the price of Bitcoin Depot Class A common stock at the time of each exchange, the extent to which such
exchanges are taxable transactions, the depreciation and amortization periods that apply to any increase in tax basis
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resulting from such exchanges, the types of assets held by BT HoldCo, the amount and timing of taxable income Bitcoin Depot generates in the future, the U.S. federal
income tax rate then applicable and the portion of Bitcoin Depot’s payments under the TRA that constitute imputed interest or give rise to depreciable or amortizable tax
basis. The Company has recognized a TRA liability of $0.9 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2023. Changes in this liability will be
recognized in future periods through the other income/(expense) benefit caption on the Consolidated Statements of Income, the Company initially recorded $0.7 million on
September 30, 2023 through equity and an additional adjustment $0.2 million was made on December 31, 2023, which was recorded to the income statement, for a total
TRA of $0.9 million.

Pursuant to the Company's election under Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code"), the Company expects to obtain an increase in its share of the tax basis in
the net assets of BT HoldCo when units are redeemed or exchanged by the other members of BT HoldCo. The Company plans to make an election under Section 754 of the
Code for each taxable year in which a redemption or exchange of BT HoldCo units occurs. The Company intends to treat any redemptions and exchanges of BT HoldCo
units as direct purchases of the units for U.S. federal income tax purposes. These increases in tax basis may reduce the amounts that would otherwise be paid in the future to
various tax authorities. They may also decrease gains (or increase losses) on future dispositions of certain capital assets to the extent tax basis is allocated to those capital
assets.

On April 24, 2024, the Company acquired an aggregate of 2.9 million units in connection with an exchange with BT HoldCo (see Note 14), which resulted in an increase in
the tax basis of its investment in BT HoldCo subject to the provisions of the Tax Receivable Agreement. The Company also recorded an additional liability of $1.3 million
for the TRA payments due to the redeeming members, representing 85% of the aggregate tax benefits the Company expects to realize from the tax basis increases related to
the exchange of units, after concluding it was probable that such TRA payments would be paid based on estimates of future taxable income. No payments were made to the
members of BT HoldCo pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement in 2024 or 2023.

On May 30, 2025, the Company and BT Assets agreed to terminate the Tax Receivable Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2023, by and among the Company, BT HoldCo and
BT Assets. As consideration for the termination of the Tax Receivable Agreement, the Company made a cash payment to the former stockholders of BT Assets (including
Mr. Mintz and his affiliated entities) in the amount of $8.4 million. The Company derecognized the Tax Receivable Agreement to Additional paid-in capital as a result of the
transaction being accounted for as a common control transaction. The Company currently has no Tax Receivable Agreement liability on the balance sheet.

(16) Share-Based Compensation

BitAccess:

BitAccess maintained a stock option plan for its employees under the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan, (the “BitAccess Plan”). Pursuant to BitAccess Plan
agreement, awards of stock options and restricted stock units (“BitAccess RSUs”) were permitted to be made to employees and shareholders of BitAccess. As of September

30, 2025, all awards under the BitAccess Plan had been issued.

The options under the BitAccess Plan generally vest over a two-year period following the one-year anniversary of the date of grant and expire not more than 10 years from
the date of grant.

Options
A summary of the BitAccess Plan’s stock option activity and related information is as follows:

Weighted-average

Amount or number of Weighted-average remaining contractual ‘Weighted-average
options exercise price term grant-date fair value
Outstanding at January 1, 2025 43,780 $ 286 760 $ 3.09
Granted — $ — — 3 —
Exercised — $ — — o
Outstanding at September 30, 2025 43,780 $ 2.86 685 § 3.09
Vested and exercisable at September 30, 2025 30,153 $ 2.86 6.78 $ 3.05
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‘Weighted-average
Amount or number of Weighted-average remaining contractual Weighted-average

options exercise price term grant-date fair value
Outstanding at January 1, 2024 43,780  $ 2.86 8.60 $ 1.21
Granted —  $ — — —
Exercised — 3 — — 3 —
Outstanding at September 30, 2024 2.86 7.85 3.09

43,780 $ $

Vested and exercisable at September 30, 2024 20,208 $ 2.86 — 3 3.10

2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan

Pursuant to the Incentive Plan the Board is authorized to grant awards of Class A common Stock, incentive stock options, non-statutory stock options, RSUs, performance-
based RSUs ("PSUs"), and restricted stock in an aggregate amount up to 6,029,445 shares of Class A common stock to eligible recipients, as defined in the Incentive Plan.
The Company recognized $2.2 million and $3.3 million of share-based compensation expense during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025. respectively.
The Company recognized $0.4 million and $3.0 million of share-based compensation expense during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively.
Share-based compensation expense is included within selling and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

PSUs

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company's Compensation Committee determined that the performance targets under the PSU awards granted in
2024 were not met, and therefore none of such PSUs vested. The Company had no unrecognized compensation expense associated with PSUs as of September 30, 2025.

Time-based RSUs

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company granted 251,298 and 1,936,351 time-based RSUs, respectively. During the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2024, the Company granted 218,400 and 1,255,686 time-based RSUs, respectively. These RSUs generally vest one-third on the first
anniversary of the grant date and in equal quarterly installments over the next two years.

For these time-based RSUs, the Company recognized stock-based compensation in the Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity as Additional Paid-In
Capital and stock-based compensation expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 of $0.7 million and
$1.7 million, respectively, and $0.4 million and $1.9 million during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively. The Company had unrecognized
compensation expense associated with time-based RSUs of $4.0 million and $2.4 million as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. RSU and PSU
award activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024 is as follows:

RSU Weighted-average

Number of RSUs grant date fair value
Outstanding at January 1, 2025 1,624,687 $ 2.40
Granted 1,936,351 $ 1.87
Vested (734,480) § 2.36
Forfeited (280,687) $ 1.90
Outstanding at September 30, 2025 2,545,871 $ 2.06
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RSU Weighted-average
Number of RSUs grant date fair value
Outstanding at January 1, 2024 1,352,085 $ 3.59
Granted 1,255,686 $ 1.88
Vested (704,391) § 3.60
Forfeited (126,989) $ 2.48
Outstanding at September 30, 2024 1,776,391 $ 2.45

(17) Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The Series A Preferred Stock have similar economic rights to the Class A common stock and management considers them to be in substance common shares for earnings
per share (“EPS”) purposes. As a result, the weighted average Series A Preferred Stock outstanding during the period was included in the calculation of weighted average
common stock outstanding. No other classes of shares with economic rights were outstanding during the period, and therefore, EPS was not presented for such classes. The
Public and Private Warrants along with the BitAccess options were considered in diluted EPS under the treasury stock method, if dilutive. The Class E common stock
represents earnout arrangements that are contingently issuable into Class A common stock, and are only considered in the calculation of EPS once the stock price milestones
have been achieved. The non-controlling interest was considered in diluted EPS under the if-converted method, if dilutive.

The share-based compensation expense related to Class A shares has been attributed entirely to Bitcoin Depot Inc. for purposes of the net income (loss) per share calculation
within the Consolidated Statements of Income. Additionally, for purposes of the net income (loss) per share calculation, because such amounts pertain to compensation
expense that do not affect the net assets of BT HoldCo available for liquidation, they are not further attributed to the non-controlling interest holders under the HLBV
method described in Note 11.

Management determined that EPS for periods prior to the Merger was not considered meaningful due to the complexities of determining the weighted average stock
outstanding as a result of the recapitalization. Accordingly, the computation of loss per share and weighted average common stock outstanding has only been presented for
the period from the date of transaction close through September 30, 2025, as follows (in thousands, except for share and net income (loss) per share amounts):

Three Months Ended June 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024

Numerator:
Net income (loss) attributable to Bitcoin Depot Inc. - basic and diluted $ 5,544 $ %41y § 15,807 § (7,460
Denominator:
Weighted average common stock outstanding - basic and diluted 67,822,957 20,701,447 42,165,276 18,908,391
Net income (loss) per share - Bitcoin Depot Inc. $ $ ) $ $ )

0.08 (0.05 0.37 (0.39

The following securities were not included in the computation of diluted shares outstanding because the effect would be anti-dilutive or issuance of such shares is
contingent upon the satisfaction of certain conditions which were not satisfied by the end of the period:

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
PubCo Warrants - Public and Private 43,848,750 43,848,750
PubCo Class E Common Stock - Earnouts Units — 1,075,761
BT OpCo Exchangeable Non-Controlling Interest'" @ — 44,093,024
BT OpCo Earnouts Units'” 15,000,000 15,000,000
2023 Incentive Plan RSU awards 2,545,871 1,624,687

(1)Held at BT Assets and exchangeable into Class A common stock of the Company or cash upon the occurrence of certain conditions.
(2)Held at BT Assets and can be exchanged into Class A common stock of the Company.
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(18) Leases
Floorspace leases

The Company has obligations as a lessee for floorspace. Generally, these lease arrangements meet the short-term lease criteria when the floorspace leases are cancellable by
the Company upon notice of 30 days or less. Accordingly, for the leases that are cancellable, the Company has elected and applied the practical expedient that allows the
Company to recognize short-term lease payments on a straight-line basis over the lease term on the Consolidated Statements of Income. For those floorspace leases that have
a noncancellable term greater than 12 months, the Company records ROU assets and lease liabilities and presents them as operating leases. The Company recognized right
of use assets and a lease liability of $0.0 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, and $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 as a

result of the non-cash transaction related to floorspace operating leases.

Office space leases

The Company has obligations as a lessee for office space under a noncancellable lease arrangement that expires in May 2025, with options to renew up to five years.
Payments due under the lease contracts include mainly fixed payments. The lease for the office space is classified as an operating lease in accordance with Topic 842.

BTM Kiosk leases

The Company has obligations as a lessee for BTM kiosks. The leases for the BTM kiosks are classified as finance leases in accordance with Topic 842 that expire on various
dates through August 31, 2027. The BTM kiosk lease agreements are for two or three year terms and include various options to either renew the lease, purchase the kiosks
or exercise a bargain option to purchase the kiosk at the end of the term. Certain finance leases are personally guaranteed by the CEO and contain guarantees for return of
equipment by the CEO.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company entered into lease agreements for the lease of 1,186 new BTMs. The leases have noncancellable lease terms
ranging from 24 months to 36 months. The Company will acquire the assets for a bargain purchase price of $1 at the end of their terms. Due to the bargain purchase option,
the Company classified the new leases as a finance lease. The Company recognized right of use assets and a lease liability of $3.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2024 as a result of the non-cash transaction related to the finance leases. No new BTM kiosk lease agreements have been entered into during the nine months ended
September 30, 2025.

The components of the lease expense are as follows (in thousands, except lease term and discount rate figures):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Finance lease expense:
Amortization of right-of-use-assets $ 351 $ 884§ 1,076 $ 3,469
Interest on lease liabilities 143 310 543 1,049
Total finance lease expense 494 1,194 1,619 4,518
Operating lease expense 292 299 888 660
Short-term lease expense 9,577 9,730 28,213 27,125
Total lease expense $ 10,363 § 11,223 § 30,720 $ 32,303
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Other information:
Operating cash flows used for finance leases $ (156 $ (320y $ (582y $ (1,088)
Operating cash flows used for operating leases $ 284y § (340y § 935y $ (749
Financing cash flows used for finance leases $ (866) $ 2,049y $ (2,539 $ (6,242)
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September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Weighted-average remaining lease term - finance leases 1.1 years 1.7 years
Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 2.9 years 3.0 years
Weighted-average discount rate - finance leases 18.2% 18.2%
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 16.9% 16.9%

Maturities of the lease liability under the noncancellable operating leases as of September 30, 2025 are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Leases

Remainder of 2025 $ 269
2026 1,079
2027 632
2028 425
2029 164
Thereafter 84
Total undiscounted lease payments 2,653
Less: imputed interest (544)
Total operating lease liability 2,109
Less: operating lease liabilities, current (796)
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion $ 1,313

Maturities of the lease liability under the noncancellable finance leases as of September 30, 2025 are as follows (in thousands):

Finance Leases

Remainder of 2025 $ 1,033
2026 1,754
2027 384
2028 —
Total undiscounted lease payments 3,171
Less: imputed interest (304)
Total finance lease liability 2,867
Less: current installments of obligations under finance leases (2,375)
Obligations under finance leases, excluding current installments $ 492

(19) Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

From time to time in the regular course of its business, the Company is involved in various lawsuits, claims, investigations and other legal matters. Except as noted below,
there are no material legal proceedings pending or known by the Company to be contemplated to which the Company is a party or to which any of its property is subject.

The Company believes that adequate provisions for resolution of all contingencies, claims and pending litigation have been made for probable losses that are reasonably
estimable. These contingencies are subject to significant uncertainties and the Company is unable to estimate the amount or range of loss, if any, in excess of amounts
accrued. The Company does not believe that the ultimate outcome of these actions will have a material adverse effect on its financial condition but could have a material
adverse effect on its results of operations, cash flows or liquidity in a given quarter or year.

On January 13, 2023, Canaccord Genuity Corp. (“Canaccord”) commenced proceedings against the Company by filing a claim with the Superior Court of Justice in
Toronto, Ontario which named Lux Vending, LLC and Bitcoin Depot LLC as the defendants.
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Canaccord is a financial services firm in Canada that the Company previously had hired to perform advisory services related to a potential initial public offering in Canada
or sales transaction. The claim asserts that Lux Vending, LLC breached the contract by terminating the contract to avoid paying fees for their services and that Canaccord is
entitled to $23.0 million in damages equivalent to the fees alleged to be payable for breach of contract that would have been owed upon the closing of a transaction to
acquire control, the sale of substantially all the Company’s assets, or a merger transaction pursuant to the previously terminated engagement letter for advisory services.
Canaccord proposes that the amount of fees would be calculated on the total cash transaction value of the business combination of $880.0 million. The claim also seeks an
award for legal and other costs relating to the proceeding.

In 2024 Canaccord added Bitcoin Depot Operating LLC as a defendant to account for the name change following the closing of the merger. Canaccord now estimates the
total transaction value could be up to $655.0 million.

Bitcoin Depot does not believe the allegations made against it are valid and intends to vigorously defend against them. The range of potential loss related to the identified
claim is between $0 and $23.0 million, the amount of damages that Canaccord is seeking in the lawsuit. The additional costs mentioned in the claim are not able to be
estimated at this time. The discovery phase of the litigation involving documentary productions and oral examinations is largely completed. A mediation of the dispute was
held on April 14, 2025 and the parties did not agree on a resolution to the dispute and the matter is currently awaiting scheduling for a pre-trial conference and a trial.

On February 26, 2025, Lux Vending, LLC and Bitcoin Depot Operating, LLC (the “Company”) were served with a civil complaint from the Attorney General of the State of
Iowa (the “Iowa AG”) in connection with a suit filed against us by the lowa AG, on behalf of the state of lowa, in the lowa District Court for Polk County. The complaint
alleges that both subsidiaries violated certain provisions of the lowa Consumer Fraud Act as a result of Bitcoin withdrawals made from our ATMs being used by our
customers to make payments under a variety of fraudulent schemes. The complaint further alleges that the defendants should have known that the purpose of these
withdrawals was to make payment under such schemes and that the defendants should have taken additional steps to protect its customers. The complaint is seeking a
preliminary and permanent injunction against the subsidiaries from either operating in Iowa or further violating the Iowa Consumer Fraud Act as well as monetary penalties.
The IA AG has not sought or been granted injunctive relief. The Company filed its Answer on April 17, 2025. The Company served its discovery requests to the IA AG and
the IA AG continues to produce documents. The IA AG recently served discovery requests on the Company on October 23, 2025.

On August 5, 2025, Bitcoin Depot, Inc. (the “Company”) received notice that a class action lawsuit was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Georgia.
The complaint, brought by a Georgia resident on behalf of a proposed nationwide class and Georgia subclass, alleges that the Company failed to adequately safeguard,
monitor, and protect the personally identifiable information (“PII”’) of approximately 27,000 customers, which was allegedly compromised in a data breach discovered in
June 2024. At that time, law enforcement requested Bitcoin Depot not publicly disclose the data breach until it completed its investigation. In July 2025, law enforcement
lifted its hold and Bitcoin Depot provided notice to the potentially impacted consumers.

The complaint asserts eight causes of action, including negligence, negligence per se (based on alleged violations of FTC guidelines), invasion of privacy, breach of implied
contract, unjust enrichment, breach of fiduciary duty, and violations of Georgia’s Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act and attorneys’ fees statute. The plaintiff seeks
actual and compensatory damages, equitable and injunctive relief, credit monitoring for at least three years, restitution, disgorgement, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, and
class certification. On October 27, 2025, the Company filed a Motion to Dismiss the Plaintiff’s Complaint in its entirety on several grounds including lack of standing,
failure to allege concrete harm, and lack of causation.

In 2025, thirteen states have passed legislation to regulate use of virtual currency kiosks, with such legislation already in effect in twelve of these states. The remaining state
will go into effect on January 1, 2026. We cannot predict the full impact these laws, or any similar pending or future legislation, may have on our financial condition or
results of operations, nor can we predict the likelihood of such bills becoming law. The new laws are largely consistent with what was reported in our most recent 10-K, see
Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors - Risks Related to Government Regulation and Privacy Matters - The digital financial system is novel. As a result, policymakers are just
beginning to consider what a regulatory regime for cryptocurrencies should look like and the elements that would serve as the foundation for such a regime. If we are
unable to effectively react to future proposed legislation and regulation of cryptocurrencies or cryptocurrency businesses, our business, operating results, and financial
condition could be adversely affected.” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Financial and tax regulations

Legislation or guidance may be issued by U.S. and non-U.S. governing bodies, including the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN”) and the Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”), that may differ significantly from the Company’s practices or interpretation of the law, which could have unforeseen effects on our financial condition and
results of operations, and accordingly, the related impact
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on our financial condition and results of operations is not estimable. Prior to 2022, the IRS concluded an examination of the Company related to certain regulatory reporting
requirements related to cryptocurrency sales to certain customers. Based on the outcome of the examination, the Company has concluded it is not probable that any fines or
penalties will be assessed against the Company. As a result, no accrual has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

(20) Subsequent Events
On October 6, 2025, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional investors pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell and issue in

a registered direct offering 4,285,716 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, at a purchase price per share of $3.50 per share. The
offering closed on October 8, 2025.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis provides information which Bitcoin Depot’s management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of consolidated
results of operations and financial condition. You should read the following discussion and analysis of Bitcoin Depot’s financial condition and results of operations in
conjunction with the unaudited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Certain information contained in this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including information with respect to plans and
strategy for Bitcoin Depot’s business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. As a result of many factors, including those factors set forth in
“Risk Factors” and “Forward-Looking Statements Safe Harbor Statement,” our actual results could differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-
looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis. Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this section to “we,” “us,” “our,” the

“Company” or “Bitcoin Depot” refer to Bitcoin Depot Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Business Overview

Bitcoin Depot owns and operates the largest network of Bitcoin ATMs (“BTMs” or "BTM kiosks") in North America where customers can buy and sell Bitcoin. Bitcoin
Depot helps power the digital economy for users of cash.

Our mission is to bring Crypto to the Masses™. Digital means and systems dominate the way that consumers send money, make purchases, and invest; however, we believe
that many people utilize cash as their primary means of initiating a transaction, either as a necessity or as a preference. These individuals have largely been excluded from the
digital financial system and associated technological advancements in our global and digitally interconnected society. Bitcoin Depot’s simple and convenient process to
convert cash into Bitcoin via our BTMs and BDCheckout out products, as supported by our feature-rich mobile app, enables not only these users, but also the broader public,
to access the digital financial system. Our mobile app includes a buy online feature that connects consumers to a third-party service, Simplex powered by Nuvei, that allows
consumers to buy Bitcoin without going to a kiosk or using BDCheckout.

Our BTMs offer one-way exchange of cash-to-Bitcoin. We also operate a leading BTM device and transaction processing system, BitAccess, which provides software and
operational capabilities to third-party BTM operators, which generates software revenue for the Company.

In August 2025, we acquired the assets of Westcliff Technologies Inc. dba. National Bitcoin ATM ("NBATM"). The acquisition adds over 500 kiosks in 27 states to Bitcoin
Depot’s network. Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement, the seller will continue to operate the purchased kiosks until they are converted to the Bitcoin Depot
operating platform during the conversion period which is expected to last roughly three months from the transaction date. Unconverted kiosks with their associated revenues
and expenses have been excluded from the Company's results for the current quarter.

As of September 30, 2025, our offerings included approximately 9,276 BTMs in retail locations throughout the U.S., Canada and Australia, our BDCheckout product, which
is accepted at approximately 16,345 retail locations, and our mobile app. We maintain a leading position among cash-to-Bitcoin BTM operators in the U.S. and Canada.

Kiosk Network and Retailer Relationships

Bitcoin Depot operates a network of kiosks that allow users to purchase Bitcoin with cash. Upon using a Bitcoin Depot kiosk for the first time, users will be prompted to
provide certain information for account creation and verification. Users are required to select from three ranges of cash amounts to be inserted in the kiosk for purchasing
Bitcoin. The user then provides the address of his or her digital wallet by scanning a QR code or manually inputting his or her unique wallet address; the user can create and
use a Bitcoin Depot-branded wallet (un-hosted and non-custodial), or his or her own other existing digital wallet. Cash is then inserted by the user into the kiosk and the kiosk
will confirm the dollar amount and other details of the transaction, including quantity of Bitcoin being purchased. Once the transaction is complete, the Bitcoin is
electronically delivered to the user’s digital wallet and the user is provided with a physical receipt as well as a receipt via SMS text.

Bitcoin Depot’s largest BTM deployment as of September 30, 2025 is with Circle K, a convenience store chain of over 9,000 stores in North America and over 5,000 stores in
Europe and other international markets. We are the exclusive provider and operator of BTMs for Circle K in the U.S. and Canada, and as of September 30, 2025 we have
installed our BTMs in approximately 750 Circle K stores. We also have BTM kiosks deployed in other convenience stores, gas stations, grocery stores, pharmacies, and
shopping malls.
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Cryptocurrencies

Our revenues, $498.8 and $436.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, have not been correlated to the price of Bitcoin historically,
even in light of volatile Bitcoin prices. For example, our revenue during the trailing twelve months ended September 30, 2025 increased by 8.6% compared to the same period
ended September 30, 2024, while the market price of Bitcoin increased by 87.5% during the same period. Based on our own user surveys, a majority of our users use our
products and services for non-speculative purposes, including domestic and international remittances, online purchases, among others.

We use a sophisticated Bitcoin management process to reduce our exposure to volatility in Bitcoin prices by maintaining a relatively low balance (typically less than $1.0
million) of Bitcoin at any given time specifically for revenue-generating operations, which we believe differentiates us from our competition. Our typical practice is to
purchase Bitcoin through a liquidity provider such as Cumberland DRW or Abra. We replenish our Bitcoin only through purchases from leading Bitcoin liquidity providers
and do not engage in any mining of Bitcoin ourselves. Our sophisticated replenishment process enables us to satisfy our users’ Bitcoin purchases with our own Bitcoin
holdings yet maintain relatively small balances of Bitcoin to effectively manage our principal risk related to our operations. There are two main components of the working
capital required in our operations. On the Bitcoin side, we maintain Bitcoin in our hot wallets to fulfill orders from users while we are automatically placing orders with
liquidity providers and exchanges to replenish the Bitcoin we have sold to users. The second component to working capital is the cash that accumulates in our BTM kiosks. As
users insert cash into the BTM kiosks, cash accumulates until armored carriers collect the cash and process it back to our bank accounts. We typically maintain a variable level
of cash in the BTM kiosks at all times. Cash in BTM kiosks as of September 30, 2025 was approximately 28.2% of average monthly revenues for the trailing twelve months
ended September 30, 2025.

In June 2024, the Company began allocating a portion of its cash reserves to Bitcoin. As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Company held approximately
$11.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively, of Bitcoin allocated to its treasury strategy.

Regulatory Environment

We operate internationally and in a rapidly evolving regulatory environment characterized by a heightened focus by regulators globally on all aspects of the payments
industry, including countering terrorist financing, anti-money laundering, privacy, cybersecurity, and consumer protection. The laws and regulations applicable to us,
including those enacted prior to the advent of digital payments, are continuing to evolve through legislative and regulatory action and judicial interpretation. New or changing
laws and regulations, including changes to their interpretation and implementation, as well as increased penalties and enforcement actions related to non-compliance, could
have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations, and financial condition. It is also possible that the increased regulatory uncertainty could increase the
cost of compliance due to tension with conflicting federal, state and local regulations, and could thus have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Significant changes or developments in U.S. laws and policies, such as laws and policies surrounding international trade, foreign affairs, consumer protection, and
environmental impact, among others, could materially adversely affect our business and financial condition. Furthermore, due to the overturning of the Chevron doctrine,
which provided for judicial deference to regulatory agencies, we cannot be sure whether there will be increased challenges to existing federal agency regulations or how lower
courts will apply the decision, which could impact regulation of financial instructions, environmental regulation, consumer protection, advertising, privacy, artificial
intelligence, and other regulatory regimes with which we are required to comply in an unpredictable manner. Finally, we cannot predict how the slew of executive orders
issued by the new presidential administration might impact our operations and financial condition, particularly given the likelihood of increasing legal challenges to these
executive orders. For further discussion, see Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

In 2025, thirteen states have passed legislation to regulate use of virtual currency kiosks, with such legislation already in effect in twelve of these states. The remaining state
will go into effect on January 1, 2026. We cannot predict the full impact these laws, or any similar pending or future legislation, may have on our financial condition or results
of operations, nor can we predict the likelihood of such bills becoming law. The new laws are largely consistent with what was reported in our most recent 10-K, see Part I,
Item 1A, “Risk Factors - Risks Related to Government Regulation and Privacy Matters - The digital financial system is novel. As a result, policymakers are just beginning to
consider what a regulatory regime for cryptocurrencies should look like and the elements that would serve as the foundation for such a regime. If we are unable to effectively
react to future proposed legislation and regulation of cryptocurrencies or cryptocurrency businesses, our business, operating results, and financial condition could be
adversely affected.” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Key Business Metrics

We monitor and evaluate the following key business metrics to measure performance, identify trends, develop and refine growth strategies and make strategic decisions. We
believe these metrics and measures are useful to facilitate period-to-period comparisons of our business, and to facilitate comparisons of our performance to that of our
competitors.
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Our key metrics are calculated using internal company data based on the activity we measure on our platform and may be compiled from multiple systems. While the
measurement of our key metrics is based on what we believe to be reasonable methodologies and estimates, there are inherent challenges and limitations in measuring our key
metrics internationally. The methodologies used to calculate our key metrics require judgment and we regularly review our processes for calculating these key metrics, and
from time to time we may make adjustments to improve their accuracy or relevance.

Three Months Ended

September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31
2025 2024 2023
Installed kiosks (at period end) 9,276 8,978 8,483 8,457 8,304 8,068 7,061 6,334 6,404 6351 6,441
Kiosks held with logistics providers 1,695 1,736 2314 2,117 2,506 758 587 898 842 981 891
Returning user transaction count 5.6 5.6 6.3 6.3 13 7.1 7.7 83 9.1 9.2 10.0
New user count 25254 25,007 23,426 22,490 20,818 20,971 20,689 22229 27,685 30,710 32,260
Median kiosk transaction size (in $) 350 300 300 280 250 230 205 200 200 200 200
Lifetime value 5.269 5221 5,146 5,065 5,022 4,960 4,838 4,755 4,659 4,539 4,387

Installed Kiosks

This metric provides an indicator of our market penetration, the growth of our business and our potential future business opportunities. We define installed kiosks as the
number of kiosks installed at the end of the quarter in a retail location that are connected to our network. We monitor transaction volume at our kiosks on a continuous basis to
maximize transaction volumes from each kiosk. Based on these monitoring activities, we may re-deploy certain of our kiosks, using third-party logistics providers, to new
locations (e.g., those available with our new retail partners) that we believe will maximize transaction volumes and revenues.

Kiosks Held with Logistics Providers
This metric includes kiosks held with our logistics providers, the manufacturer, or kiosks that are in-transit to new locations, which we believe will result in higher transaction
volume and revenue per kiosk once deployed.

Returning User Transaction Count

This metric provides an indicator of user retention and our competitive advantage relative to our peers, as well as the trajectory of cryptocurrency adoption, and allows us to
make strategic decisions. We define returning user transaction count as the average number of aggregate transactions completed at any kiosk in the four quarters trailing the
quarter in which a given user’s first transaction occurred, measured only for users who complete more than one transaction. For example, as of September 30, 2025, users
who first transacted at one of our kiosks during the three months ended September 30, 2024 and who subsequently completed a second transaction completed an average of
5.6 transactions over the twelve months following their initial transaction.

New User Count

This metric Provides an indication of the effectiveness of our advertising and marketing efforts. We define new user count as the number of users who complete their first
transaction during the quarter reported.

Median Kiosk Transaction Size

This metric provides information to analyze user behavior as well as evaluate our performance and formulate financial projections. We calculate median kiosk transaction size
based on the dollar value of all purchases and sales of Bitcoin at our kiosks, including transaction fees, during the rolling twelve month period.

Lifetime Value

This metric provides information to analyze user behavior as well as evaluate our performance and formulate financial projections. We define customer lifetime value as the
average cumulative dollar value of all purchases by users acquired from inception through the current quarter. For example, as of September 30, 2025, users who have
completed at least one transaction between 2016 and September 30, 2025 have transacted a total of $5,269 on average.

Segment Reporting

Our financial reporting is organized into one segment. We make specific disclosures concerning our products and services because such disclosure facilitates our discussion of
trends and operational initiatives within our business and industry. Our products and
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services are aggregated and viewed by management as one reportable segment due to the similarity in the nature of the customers and overall economic characteristics, the
nature of the products and services provided and the applicable regulatory environment.

Components of Results of Operations
Revenue

We generate substantially all of our revenue from the cash paid by customers to purchase Bitcoin from our kiosks. For example, approximately 99.8% of our revenue in the
three months ended September 30, 2025 was derived from the sale of our cryptocurrency, including the markup at which we sell cryptocurrency to users (which can vary
between BDCheckout and BTM kiosks) and a separate flat transaction fee. These user-initiated transactions are governed by terms and conditions agreed to at the time of each
point-of-sale transaction and do not extend beyond the transaction.

For the periods presented, the markup percentage for BTM kiosk transactions ranged between 15% and 50%, of the USD amount of the transaction with such markup rates
historically having been, and continuing to be, subject to fluctuation as a result of our ongoing price strategy testing. The markup percentage for BDCheckout transactions has
been 15% since the rollout of this type of transaction in 2022. Finally, the Company receives a commission as a percentage for our website transactions which was 12%
through September 30, 2025. Markup percentages are determined by examining user transaction patterns in various geographic locations, based on ongoing markup rate
testing, with the ultimate aim of optimizing profitability, growth and user base.

For each Bitcoin transaction on our kiosks and within BDCheckout, the cryptocurrency price displayed to users includes the exchange rate at which we sell Bitcoin to users as
well as a separate flat transaction fee. As of September 30, 2025, we charge (i) a flat $3.00 fee on all transactions at BTM kiosks, which generally corresponds to the costs
underlying such transactions and (ii) a flat $3.50 fee on BDCheckout transactions, which is what our payment provider, InComm, charges us to facilitate transactions using
InComm’s network.

Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization)

Our cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization), which is primarily driven by transaction volume, consists primarily of direct costs related to selling Bitcoin and
operating our network of kiosks. Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) includes the cost of Bitcoin, fees paid to obtain Bitcoin, gains on sales of Bitcoin
on an exchange, fees paid to operate the software on the BTMs, rent paid for floorspace for BTMs, fees paid to transfer Bitcoin to users, cost of BTM repair and maintenance,
and the cost of armored trucks to collect and transport cash deposited into the BTMs.

Our costs associated with a BDCheckout transaction are lower than costs associated with a BTM transaction, primarily due to significantly greater operating expenses
associated with the BTMs, including cash collection fees and short-term lease payments to the retail locations where the kiosks are placed. However, the profitability of the
two services is similar because of the higher markup that Bitcoin Depot applies to BTM transactions to support the higher costs associated therewith.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses consist of selling, general and administrative expenses and depreciation and amortization.

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of expenses related to our customer support, marketing, finance, legal, compliance, operations, human
resources, and administrative personnel. Selling, general and administrative expenses also include costs related to fees paid for professional services, including legal, tax, and

accounting services.

Depreciation and amortization include depreciation on computer hardware and software, BTMs (including both BTMs owned by us and those subject to finance leases), office
furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements and amortization of intangible assets.

Other income (expense)

Other income (expense) includes interest expense, the impact of lease modifications, gains and losses on Bitcoin treasury investment holdings, and gains and losses on foreign
currency transactions.

Interest expense consists primarily of the interest expense on our borrowings and our finance leases and loss on extinguishment of debt.
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Results of Operations
Comparison between Three Months Ended September 30, 2025 and Three Months Ended September 30, 2024

The following table sets forth selected historical operating data for the periods indicated (unaudited):

Three Months Ended September 30,
(in thousands) 2025 2024 $ Change % Change

Statements of Income Information:

Revenue $ 162,482 $ 135271  § 27,211 20.1%
Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization reported
separately below) 132,357 112,853 19,504 17.3%
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative 16,443 14,694 1,749 11.9%
Depreciation and amortization 1,900 2,245 (345) (15.4)%
Total operating expenses 18,343 16,939 1,404 8.3%
Income from operations 11,782 5,479 6,303 115.0%
Other income (expense)
Interest (expense) (4,133) (2,907) (1,226) 42.2%
Other income 905 103 802 778.6%
(Loss) on foreign currency transactions (25) (29) 4 (13.8)%
Income before provision for income taxes and non-controlling interest 8,529 2,646 5,883 222.3%
Income tax expense (3,042) (347) (2,695) 776.7%
Net income $ 5487 § 2,299 $ 3,188 138.70y,
Net (loss) income attributable to non-controlling interest $ 57) $ 3238 § (3,295) (101.8)%
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ 5544 § 939y § 6,483 (690.4)%

Revenue

Revenue increased by $27.2 million, or 20.1% for the three months ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2024 primarily due to an
increase in total kiosks in operation during 2025, and an increase in the median transaction size.

Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization)

Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) increased by $19.5 million, or 17.3% for the three months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the three
months ended June 30, 2024, primarily due to the increase in transaction volume.

The following table sets forth the components of the cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands) 2025 2024 $ Change % Change
Cryptocurrency Expenses $ 116,318 § 97,555 §$ 18,763 192%
Floorspace Leases 9,804 10,007 (203) (2.0)%
Kiosk Operations 6,235 5,291 944 17.8%
Total of Cost of Revenue (excluding Depreciation and Amortization) — $ 132,357 $ 112,853  § 19,504 17.3%

Floorspace Leases

Our floorspace lease expenses decreased by $0.2 million, or 2.0% for the three months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the three months ended September 30,
2024. The decrease was due to more favorable lease terms on leases in the third fiscal quarter of 2025 compared to the same quarter in 2024.
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Kiosk Operations

Our kiosk operations costs increased by $0.9 million or 17.8% for the three months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2024.
Our kiosk operations consisted of armored cash collection, bank fees, software costs, insurance and repair and maintenance. The increase in kiosk operations costs was
attributable to the growth in active kiosks deployed in 2025 as compared to the same period of the prior year.

Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $1.7 million, or 11.9% for the three months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the three months ended
September 30, 2024. The increase was driven by higher share-based compensation and indirect taxes incurred in the third quarter of 2025 compared to the same period in
2024.

Other (expense) income

Other expense increased by $0.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2024, primarily driven by
increased interest expense, partially offset by the recognition of a $0.7 million unrealized gain on Bitcoin held for investment.

Comparison between Nine Months Ended September 30, 2025 and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024

The following table sets forth selected historical operating data for the periods indicated (unaudited):

Nine Months Ended September 30,
(in thousands) 2025 2024 $ Change % Change

Statements of Income Information:

Revenue $ 498,816 $ 436,876  $ 61,940 14.2%

Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization reported

separately below) 402,830 370,848 31,982 8.6%

Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative 44,992 44,062 930 2.1%

Depreciation and amortization 5,666 8,184 (2,518) (30.8)%
Total operating expenses 50,658 52,246 (1,588) 3.0)%
Income from operations 45,328 13,782 31,546 228.9%

Other income (expense)

Interest (expense) (11,927) (10,731) (1,196) 11.1%

Other income 2,145 143 2,002 1,400.0%

Income (loss) on foreign currency transactions 95 (294) 389 (132.3)%
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes and non-

controlling interest 35,641 2,900 32,741 1,129.0%

Income tax expense (5,656) 479) (5,177) 1,080.8%
Net income $ 29,985 $ 2421  $ 27,564 1,138.50

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 14,178 7,459 6,719 90.1%

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ 15,807 $ (5,038 § 20,845 (413.8y0,

Revenue

Revenue increased by $61.9 million, or 14.2% for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024, primarily due to an
increase in total kiosks in operation during 2025, and an increase in the median transaction size.

Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization)

Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) increased by $32.0 million, or 8.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the nine
months ended September 30, 2024, primarily due to the increase in transaction volume.
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The following table sets forth the components of the cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) for the periods indicated:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands) 2025 2024 $ Change % Change
Cryptocurrency Expenses $ 356,826  $ 327,778  $ 29,048 8.9%
Floorspace Leases 28,934 27,663 1,271 4.6%
Kiosk Operations 17,070 15,407 1,663 10.8%
Total Cost of Revenue (excluding Depreciation and Amortization) $ 402,830 $ 370,848 § 31,982 8.6%

Floorspace Leases

Our floorspace lease expenses increased by $1.3 million, or 4.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024.
The increase was attributable to the growth in active kiosks deployed in 2025 as compared to the same period of the prior year.

Kiosk Operations

Our kiosk operations costs increased by $1.7 million or 10.8% for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024.
Our kiosk operations consisted of armored cash collection, bank fees, software costs, insurance and repair and maintenance. The increase in kiosk operations costs was
attributable to the growth in active kiosks deployed in 2025 as compared to the same period of the prior year.

Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $0.9 million, or 2.1% for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2024. The increase was primarily driven by higher legal services expenses in the nine months of 2025 compared to the same period in 2024.

Other (expense) income

Other expenses decreased by $1.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024, primarily driven by the
recognition of a $1.9 million unrealized gain on Bitcoin held for investment, partially offset by higher interest expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
At September 30, 2025, we had working capital of approximately $37.1 million, which included cash and cash equivalents and other current assets of approximately $79.2
million, offset by accounts payable and other current liabilities of approximately $42.1 million. We reported net income of approximately $30.0 million during the nine

months ended September 30, 2025.

At December 31, 2024, we had negative working capital of approximately $(6.3) million, which included cash and cash equivalents and other current assets of approximately
$34.3 million, offset by accounts payable and other current liabilities of approximately $40.6 million.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and September 30, 2024, we had positive cash flow from operations of $33.0 million and $17.3 million, respectively.

We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents, together with cash provided by operations, will be sufficient to meet our needs for at least the next 12 months.

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors including our revenue growth rate, the timing and extent of spending to support research and development efforts
and the timing and extent of additional capital expenditures to purchase additional kiosks and invest in the expansion of our products and services. We may in the future enter
into arrangements to acquire or invest in complementary businesses, products and technologies, including intellectual property rights. We may be required to seek additional

equity or debt financing. If additional financing is required from outside sources, we may not be able to do so on acceptable terms or
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at all. If we are unable to raise additional capital when desired, our business, results of operations and financial condition would be materially and adversely affected.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Adjusted Gross Profit

We define Adjusted Gross Profit (a non-GAAP financial measure) as revenue less cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) and depreciation and
amortization adjusted to add back depreciation and amortization. We believe Adjusted Gross Profit provides useful information to investors and others in understanding and
evaluating our results of operations, as well as provides a useful measure for period-to-period comparisons of our business performance. Moreover, we have included
Adjusted Gross Profit in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q because it is a key measurement used internally by management to measure the efficiency of our business. This
non-GAAP financial measure should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. We
compensate for these limitations by relying primarily on U.S. GAAP results and using Adjusted Gross Profit on a supplemental basis. Our computation of Adjusted Gross
Profit may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures computed by other companies because not all companies calculate this measure in the same fashion. You
should review the reconciliation of Gross Profit to Adjusted Gross Profit below and not rely on any single financial measure to evaluate our business.

The following table presents a reconciliation of revenue to Adjusted Gross Profit for the periods indicated (unaudited):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue $ 162,482 $ 135,271 $ 498,816  $ 436,876
Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) (132,357) (112,853) (402,830) (370,848)
Depreciation and amortization excluded from cost of revenue (1,894) (2,233) (5,647) (8,090)
Gross Profit $ 28,231 $ 20,185 $ 90,339 $ 57,938
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization excluded from cost of revenue $ 1,894 $ 2,233 $ 5,647 $ 8,090
Adjusted Gross Profit

$ 30,125 $ 22,418 $ 95,986 $ 66,028
Gross Profit Margin 17.4% 14.9% 18.1% 13.3%
Adjusted Gross Profit Margin (" 18.5% 16.6 % 19.2% 15.1%

(1)Calculated as a percentage of revenue.

Adjusted EBITDA

We define Adjusted EBITDA (a non-GAAP financial measure) as net income before interest expense, tax expense, depreciation and amortization, non-recurring expenses,
unrealized gains and losses on cryptocurrency held for investment (as a result of adopting ASU 2023-08 on January 1, 2025), share-based compensation, and miscellaneous
cost adjustments.

These items are excluded from Adjusted EBITDA because these items are non-cash in nature, or because the amount and timing of these items is unpredictable, not driven by
core results of operations and renders comparisons with prior periods and competitors less meaningful. We believe Adjusted EBITDA provides useful information to investors
and others in understanding and evaluating our results of operations, as well as provides a useful measure for period-to-period comparisons of our business performance.
Moreover, we have included Adjusted EBITDA in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q because it is a key measurement used internally by management to make operating
decisions, including those related to operating expenses, evaluate performance and perform strategic and financial planning. However, you should be aware that when
evaluating Adjusted EBITDA, we may incur future expenses similar to those excluded when calculating these measures. The presentation of this measure should not be
construed as an inference that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. Further, this non-GAAP financial measure should not be considered in
isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. We compensate for these limitations by relying primarily on U.S. GAAP
results and using Adjusted EBITDA on a supplemental basis. Our computation of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures computed by
other companies because not all companies calculate this measure in the same fashion. You should review the reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA below and
not rely on any single financial measure to evaluate our business.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA for the periods indicated (unaudited):

(in thousands)

Net income

Adjustments:

Interest expense

Income tax expense
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealized loss on cryptocurrency held for investment
Non-recurring expenses ")
Interest (income)

Share-based compensation
Special bonus

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA margin @

(1)Composed of non-recurring professional service fees related to the merger.

Three Months Ended September 30,

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
5487 $ 2,299 29,985 2,421
4275 2,907 12,069 10,731
3,042 347 5,656 479
1,900 2,245 5,666 8,184
(690) — (1,911) —
4 297 286 1,204
(142) — (142) —
2,185 412 3,257 3,037
— 675 — 675
16,061 $ 9,182 54,866 $ 26,731
9.9% 6.8% 11.0% 6.1%

(2)Adjusted EBITDA margin is defined as Adjusted EBITDA divided by revenue. The Company uses this measure to evaluate its overall profitability.

Sources of Liquidity

Credit Agreement

On June 23, 2023, the Company amended and restated its credit agreement (the "Amended and Restated Note") with its existing lender. Under the Amended and Restated
Note, the Company refinanced $20.8 million of the note which is subject to an annual interest at a rate of 17% per annum. The Company is required to make monthly interest
payments and fixed principal payments every six months beginning on December 15, 2023 through June 15, 2026. In connection with the Amended and Restated Note, the
Company repaid approximately $16.4 million of the outstanding principal balance, refinanced $20.8 million of the outstanding principal balance and paid an exit fee of $2.3
million. The Amended and Restated Note matures on June 23, 2026, at which time, any outstanding principal balance and any accrued interest become due. Additionally, the
Company is required to pay an exit fee of $1.8 million upon maturity or prepayment and accordingly, has included this amount in the note payable, non-current in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. In conjunction with the transaction, Legacy Bitcoin Depot and BT Assets, Inc. were substituted for BT OpCo and BT HoldCo, LLC respectively.
The Amended and Restated Note is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of BT HoldCo, LLC and Mintz Assets, Inc., Express Vending, Inc., Intuitive Software,
LLC, Digital Gold Ventures, Inc. and BitAccess Inc. The Company is subject to certain financial covenants contained in the Amended and Restated Note, which require BT
HoldCo and certain of its subsidiaries to maintain certain cash balances, and a maximum consolidated total leverage ratio, in addition to customary administrative covenants.
The Company accounted for the Amended and Restated Note as a debt modification in accordance with ASC 470, Debt.

On March 26, 2024, the Company entered into an amendment to the Amended and Restated Note dated June 23, 2023 (the “Second Amended and Restated Note”) to provide
an additional $15.7 million in principal financing. This amendment increased the aggregate principal amount of the term loan facility to $35.6 million which consists of $19.9
million outstanding under the original loan and $15.7 million in additional principal resulting in net cash flow of $15.2 million related to the amendment. The Company
accounted for the Second Amended and Restated Note as an extinguishment of debt in accordance with ASC 470, Debt. As such, the Company recognized the outstanding
deferred financing costs of $3.2 million as a loss on extinguishment of debt in interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income which consisted of a $2.7 million

write off unamortized deferred loan costs and $0.5 million in loan origination fees related to the amendment.

On March 14, 2025, the Company entered into an amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Note (“Amendment No.1 of the Second Amended and Restated Note”).
Pursuant to Amendment No.1 of the Second Amended and Restated Note, the maturity date of the loans was extended from June 23, 2026 to December 15, 2027 and the

amortization schedule was revised to reflect the extended maturity date.

We began entering into kiosk franchise profit sharing arrangements in 2024. Under the terms of the agreements, the third parties receive a share in the profits generated by a
group of specifically identified kiosks for a specified period of time with the consideration received up front. During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, we entered

into five kiosk franchise profit sharing
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arrangements. We recorded debt of $20.7 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as a result of these franchise profit sharing arrangements, maturing in
March, April, June and August of 2033, with principal and interest paid monthly via profit sharing payments. We did not enter into any new kiosk franchise profit sharing
arrangements during the three months ended September 30, 2025.

Cash Flows

The following table presents the sources of cash and cash equivalents for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2025 2024
Cash provided by operating activities $ 33,033 § 17,253
Cash (used in) investing activities $ (13,240) $ (10,506)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ 10,212 § 4,312)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1) $ 29,794 % 2,470

(1)  Includes effect of exchange rate changes on cash.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increased $15.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024,
primarily due to a $27.6 million increase in net income driven by improved gross margin in 2025.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased $2.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024,
primarily due to a $7.9 million increase in acquisition of BTC investment.
Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities increased $14.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024,
primarily due to a $20.8 million increase in proceeds from equity sales and a $12.6 million decrease in distributions, offset by a $9.8 million increase in payments on notes
payable and $9.1 million paid in connection with the Up-C transaction.

Commitments and Contractual Obligations

As of September 30, 2025, the aggregate amount of our operating and finance lease obligations was approximately $5.0 million. As of September 30, 2025, we had no open
purchase orders for kiosks.

See Note 13 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information about our notes
payable.

See Note 15 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information about our tax
receivable agreement.

See Note 18 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information about our leases.

Litigation

From time to time in the regular course of our business, we are involved in various lawsuits, claims, investigations and other legal matters. Except as noted below, there are no
material legal proceedings pending or known by us to be contemplated to which we are a party or to which any of our property is subject to.
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See Note 18 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information about our material
commitments and contingencies, including litigation.

We believe that adequate provisions for resolution of all contingencies, claims and pending litigation have been made for probable losses that are reasonably estimable. These
contingencies are subject to significant uncertainties and we are unable to estimate the amount or range of loss, if any, in excess of amounts accrued. We do not believe that
the ultimate outcome of these actions will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition but could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash
flows or liquidity in a given quarter or year.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

None.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Accounting Pronouncement Adopted

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07 "Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures". The amendments require entities to
disclose significant segment expenses impacting profit and loss that are regularly provided to the CODM. In addition, the amendments enhance interim disclosure
requirements, clarify circumstances in which an entity can disclose multiple segment measures of profit or loss, provide new segment disclosure requirements for entities with
a single reportable segment, and contain other disclosure requirements. The update is required to be applied retrospectively to prior periods presented, based on the significant
segment expense categories identified and disclosed in the period of adoption. The amendments are required to be adopted for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this accounting standard effective
January 1, 2024, which resulted in additional segment disclosures primarily related to significant expenses that are regularly provided to the CODM.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-08 "Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60) Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto Assets".
ASU 2023-08 requires entities to measure crypto assets that meet the scope criteria at fair value and to reflect changes in fair value in net income each reporting period. The
amendments in ASU 2023-08 also require entities to present crypto assets measured at fair value separately from other intangible assets on the balance sheet and changes in
the fair value measurement of crypto assets separately from changes in the carrying amounts of other intangible assets on the income statement. The amendments in the ASU
are effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted for both interim
and annual financial statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance. We adopted the new accounting standard on a modified retrospective approach
effective January 1, 2025.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09 "Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (Topic 740)". The ASU requires companies to break out their income tax
expense, income tax rate reconciliation and income tax payments made in more detail. For public companies, the requirements will become effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this accounting standard, effective January 1, 2025, with no impact on interim financial
statements.

Accounting Pronouncement Pending Adoption

In October 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-06 "Disclosure Improvements: Codification Amendments in Response to the SEC's Disclosures Update and Simplification
Initiative". The guidance amends certain disclosure and presentation requirements related to the statement of cash flows, accounting changes and error corrections, earnings
per share, interim reporting, commitments, debt, equity, derivatives, transfers and services and various industry specific guidance. For entities subject to the SEC's existing
disclosure requirements, the effective date for each amendment will be the date on which the SEC's removal of that related disclosure from Regulation S-X or Regulation S-K
becomes effective. However, if by June 30, 2027, the SEC has not removed the existing disclosure requirements, the amendments will not become effective. Early adoption is
not permitted. The Company is still assessing the impacts to its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03. "Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income - Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40)". The
ASU requires expanded disclosures and disaggregation of certain expenses included within the income statement. The amendments become effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2027, with early adoption permitted. The Company is still assessing the
impacts of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements.
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In May 2025, the FASB issued ASU 2025-03, "Business Combinations (Topic 805) and Consolidation (Topic 810): Determining the Accounting Acquirer in the Acquisition of
a Variable Interest Entity". The ASU eliminates the presumption that the primary beneficiary of a VIE is automatically the accounting acquirer when a VIE business is
obtained primarily through an exchange of equity interests. ASU 2025-03 becomes effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2026 and is to be
applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is still assessing the impacts to its consolidated financial statements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk during the normal course of business from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The exposure to these risks is managed
through normal operating and financing activities. There have been no material changes to the market risks we are exposed to from those noted in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

With the participation of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer, management evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act), as of September 30, 2025. Based on their evaluation, the Company’s principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2025 to provide
reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the United States Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to
the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure, solely
as a result of the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting below.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In connection with the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2024, management identified material weaknesses in its internal
control over financial reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. The material
weaknesses identified relates to (i) the fact that the Company did not have formalized system of internal control over financial reporting in place to ensure that risks are
properly assessed, controls are properly designed and implemented and internal controls are properly monitored and functioning, (ii) the Company’s reliance on IT systems
and the use of service organizations to initiate, process, and record transactions, for which it did not evaluate or test the respective control objectives and data provided by the
service organizations, and did not maintain a sufficient complement of formally documented general IT controls over access, segregation of duties, security, and change
management, and (iii) the Company having insufficient controls in place to prevent potential unauthorized activity related to cryptocurrencies. Management has concluded
that these material weaknesses arose because, the Company did not have the necessary business processes, personnel and related internal controls necessary to satisfy the
accounting and financial reporting requirements of a public company.

Effective internal controls are necessary to provide reliable financial reports and prevent fraud, and material weaknesses could limit the ability to prevent or detect a
misstatement of accounts or disclosures that could result in a material misstatement of annual or interim financial statements. To address the material weaknesses, the
Company will need to add personnel as well as implement additional financial reporting processes and related internal controls. Management intends to continue to take steps
to remediate the material weaknesses described above through hiring additional qualified accounting and financial reporting personnel, further enhancing their accounting
processes and risk assessment, and by designing, implementing and monitoring the respective controls. Management will not be able to fully remediate these material
weaknesses until these steps have been completed and the controls have been operating effectively for a sufficient period of time. These remediation measures may be time
consuming and costly and there is no assurance that these initiatives will ultimately have the intended effects or that the actions that management may take in the future will
be sufficient to remediate the control deficiencies that led to the material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting or that they will prevent or detect potential
future material weaknesses. The Company’s current controls and any new controls that management develops may become inadequate because of changes in conditions in the
business and weaknesses in disclosure controls and internal control over financial reporting may be discovered in the future. Any failure to develop or maintain effective
controls or any difficulties encountered in their implementation or improvement could harm the operating results or cause the Company to fail to meet the reporting
obligations and may result in a restatement of the Company’s financial statements for prior periods.
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Notwithstanding the above identified material weaknesses, management believes the Consolidated Financial Statements as included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
fairly represent, in all material respects, the Company's financial condition, results of operations and cash flows as of and for the periods presented in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm is not required to attest to the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting until after the
Company is no longer an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act. At such time, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm may issue a
report that is adverse in the event it is not satisfied with the level at which the internal control over financial reporting is documented, designed or operating. Any failure to
implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting also could adversely affect the results of periodic management evaluations and annual independent
registered public accounting firm attestation reports regarding the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting required to be included in Bitcoin Depot’s
periodic reports that are filed with the SEC. Ineffective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting could also cause investors to lose
confidence in Bitcoin Depot’s reported financial and other information, which would likely have a negative effect on the trading price of the Class A common stock. In
addition, we will not be able to continue to be listed on Nasdaq, which could have an adverse effect on the liquidity of your investment.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2025 that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. The Company continues to work with a third party advisor to remediate
the control weaknesses and strengthen the overall control environment. To that end, we have developed comprehensive control matrices for business process controls, entity
level controls, and IT general controls. Thorough testing and remediation development work are ongoing.
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PART II -
OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

On January 13, 2023, Canaccord Genuity Corp. (“Canaccord”) commenced proceedings against the Company by filing a claim with the Superior Court of Justice in Toronto,
Ontario which named Lux Vending, LLC and Bitcoin Depot LLC as the defendants. Canaccord is a financial services firm in Canada that the Company previously had hired
to perform advisory services related to a potential initial public offering in Canada or sales transaction. The claim asserts that Lux Vending, LLC breached the contract by
terminating the contract to avoid paying fees for their services and that Canaccord is entitled to $23.0 million in damages equivalent to the fees alleged to be payable for
breach of contract that would have been owed upon the closing of a transaction to acquire control, the sale of substantially all the Company’s assets, or a merger transaction
pursuant to the previously terminated engagement letter for advisory services. Canaccord proposes that the amount of fees would be calculated on the total cash transaction
value of the business combination of $880.0 million. The claim also seeks an award for legal and other costs relating to the proceeding.

In 2024 Canaccord added Bitcoin Depot Operating LLC as a defendant to account for the name change following the closing of the merger. Canaccord now estimates the total
transaction value could be up to $655 million.

Bitcoin Depot does not believe the allegations made against it are valid and intends to vigorously defend against them. The range of potential loss related to the identified
claim is between $0 and $23.0 million, the amount of damages that Canaccord is seeking in the lawsuit. The additional costs mentioned in the claim are not able to be
estimated at this time. The discovery phase of the litigation involving documentary productions and oral examinations is largely completed. A mediation of the dispute was
held on April 14, 2025 and the parties did not agree on a resolution to the dispute and the matter is currently awaiting scheduling for a pre-trial conference and a trial.

On February 26, 2025, Lux Vending, LLC and Bitcoin Depot Operating, LLC (the “Company”) were served with a civil complaint from the Attorney General of the State of
Towa (the “Towa AG”) in connection with a suit filed against us by the lowa AG, on behalf of the state of Iowa, in the Iowa District Court for Polk County. The complaint
alleges that both subsidiaries violated certain provisions of the lowa Consumer Fraud Act as a result of Bitcoin withdrawals made from our ATMs being used by our
customers to make payments under a variety of fraudulent schemes. The complaint further alleges that the defendants should have known that the purpose of these
withdrawals was to make payment under such schemes and that the defendants should have taken additional steps to protect its customers. The complaint is seeking a
preliminary and permanent injunction against the subsidiaries from either operating in Iowa or further violating the lowa Consumer Fraud Act as well as monetary penalties.
The IA AG has not sought or been granted injunctive relief. The Company filed its Answer on April 17, 2025. The Company served its discovery requests to the IA AG and
the IA AG continues to produce documents. The IA AG recently served discovery requests on the Company on October 23, 2025.

On August 5, 2025, Bitcoin Depot, Inc. (the “Company”) received notice that a class action lawsuit was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Georgia.
The complaint, brought by a Georgia resident on behalf of a proposed nationwide class and Georgia subclass, alleges that the Company failed to adequately safeguard,
monitor, and protect the personally identifiable information (“PII”’) of approximately 27,000 customers, which was allegedly compromised in a data breach discovered in June
2024. At that time, law enforcement requested Bitcoin Depot not publicly disclose the data breach until it completed its investigation. In July 2025, law enforcement lifted its
hold and Bitcoin Depot provided notice to the potentially impacted consumers.

The complaint asserts eight causes of action, including negligence, negligence per se (based on alleged violations of FTC guidelines), invasion of privacy, breach of implied
contract, unjust enrichment, breach of fiduciary duty, and violations of Georgia’s Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act and attorneys” fees statute. The plaintiff seeks actual
and compensatory damages, equitable and injunctive relief, credit monitoring for at least three years, restitution, disgorgement, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, and class
certification. On October 27, 2025, the Company filed a Motion to Dismiss the Plaintiff’s Complaint in its entirety on several grounds including lack of standing, failure to
allege concrete harm, and lack of causation.

We are also party to various other legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of our business. We believe these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
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[tem 1A. Risk Factors

For a complete discussion of the Company’s risk factors, see Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2024. Other than as set forth immediately below, there have been no material changes to Risk Factors in the Company’s Annual Report since December 31, 2024.

Litigation or investigations involving us, our agents or other contractual counterparties could result in material settl ts, fines or penalties and may adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We have been, and in the future may be, subject to allegations and complaints that individuals or entities have used our products and services for fraud-induced money
transfers, as well as certain money laundering activities, which may result in fines, penalties, judgments, settlements and litigation expenses. We also are the subject from time
to time of litigation related to our business. The outcome of such allegations, complaints, claims and litigation cannot be predicted.

Regulatory and judicial proceedings and potential adverse developments in connection with ongoing litigation may adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations. There may also be adverse publicity associated with lawsuits and investigations that could decrease third-party and consumer use and acceptance of our
products and services. Additionally, our business may be the subject of class action lawsuits including securities litigation, regulatory actions and investigations and other
general litigation. The outcome of class action lawsuits, including securities litigation, regulatory actions and investigations and other litigation is difficult to assess or quantify
but may include substantial fines and expenses, as well as the revocation of required authorizations, registrations or licenses or the loss of approved status, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial position, and results of operations or users’ confidence in our business. Plaintiffs or regulatory agencies in these lawsuits,
actions or investigations may seek recovery of very large or indeterminate amounts, and the magnitude of these actions may remain unknown for substantial periods of time.
The cost to defend or settle future lawsuits or investigations may be significant. In addition, improper activities, lawsuits or investigations involving third parties may
adversely impact our business operations or reputation even if we are not directly involved.

[tem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

None.

[tem 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities.

None.

[tem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

[tem 5. Other Information.

Insider Trading Arrangements and Policies

During the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2025, none of our directors or “officers” (as such term is defined in Rule 16(a)-1(f) under the Exchange Act) adopted or
terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading agreement” or “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” (each as defined in Item 408(a) and (c) of Regulation S-K).
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[tem 6. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibit Description

31.1%* Certification of Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1%* Certification of Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2%* Certification of Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document-the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File as its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema With Embedded Linkbase Documents

104 Cover page formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101

* Filed herewith.

3k

Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly

authorized.

Date: November 13, 2025 By:
Name:
Title:

Date: November 13, 2025 By:
Name:
Title:

-55-

/s/ Brandon Mintz
Brandon Mintz
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ David Gray

David Gray

Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Olfficer)






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGEACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY
ACT OF 2002

1, Brandon Mintz, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2025 of Bitcoin Depot Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

b) [Paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238/34-47986 and 33-8392/34-49313];

=

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 13, 2025

By: /s/Brandon Mintz
Brandon Mintz
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)






Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGEACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTEDPURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT
OF 2002

1, David Gray, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2025 of Bitcoin Depot Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

b) [Paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238/34-47986 and 33-8392/34-49313];

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 13, 2025
By: /s/ David Gray
David Gray
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I, Brandon Mintz, Chief Executive Officer of Bitcoin Depot Inc.
(the “Company”), hereby certify, that, to my knowledge:

1.The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2025 (the “Report”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the
period covered by the Report.

Date: November 13, 2025

By: /s/ Brandon Mintz
Brandon Mintz
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)







Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I, David Gray, Chief Financial Officer of Bitcoin Depot Inc. (the
“Company”), hereby certify, that, to my knowledge:

1.The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2025 (the “Report”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the
period covered by the Report.

Date: November 13, 2025

By: /s/ David Gray
David Gray
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)







